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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Ping (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ma Jian Ying (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Walter Stasyshyn

Mr. Man Ming

Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David

Dr. Jordan Z. Deng
QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Ms. Wong Mei Ling
COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric
AUDITORS

Ting Ho Kwan & Chan

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Ping, aged 53, was appointed as Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director of Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited (the
“Company”) in October 2004. He is the founder and chairman of the
Tide Time Holdings Limited (together with its subsidiaries, collectively the
“Tidetime Group”), a substantial shareholder of the Company. The Tidetime
Group is principally engaged in the educational publications, remote
education, as well as distribution and production of publication and
computer peripherals in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr.
Chen graduated from A B 22 I # & BBt (Anhui Mechanical College,
the PRC) (formerly as “& ## M 2 (Anhui Mechanical School)”),
majoring in industrial automation control. Prior to founding the Tidetime
Group in 1990, Mr. Chen acted as researcher in /3 B 4t 3= 7 1= B BR #F
TP and B £ F R ERFITAT respectively. Mr. Chen is the brother-
in-law of Ms. Ma Jian Ying, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Company.

Ms. Ma Jian Ying, aged 51, was appointed as Deputy Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director of the Company in October 2004. Ms. Ma
is the director of the Tidetime Group. She was a graduate-student of the
faculty of economics and management of the University of Tongji,
Shanghai, the PRC. Ms. Ma has extensive business experience in the
PRC and has been an assistant researcher of A TP 2 R B 7T
L. Ms. Ma is the sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Walter Stasyshyn, aged 58, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company in November 2004. Mr. Stasyshyn is a practising lawyer
in Canada. Mr. Stasyshyn received his honorable bachelor’s degree from
the University of Toronto, Canada and a bachelor’s degree in laws (LLB)
from the University of Windsor, Canada. He has over 30 years of
experience in corporate and commercial laws and corporate finance.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Stasyshyn has established his
technology-related businesses (covering software development,
telecommmunication, digital compression, remote education aspects). Mr.
Stasyshyn is a director of the Tidetime Group.

Mr. Man Ming, aged 47, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in November 2004. Mr. Man is a director of the Tidetime
Group. Mr. Man has over 21 years of experience in businesses such as
remote education, properties development and corporate investment
and management in China. Mr. Man is also a director of 1t = & |l & 12
B MRS R M A IR 2 7, the Tidetime Group’s operating arm for remote
education business in China.
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Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David, aged 44 is a corporate finance practitioner
with over 20 years’ experience in IPO transactions, restructuring of PRC
enterprises and takeover transactions. He was formerly the head of the
Merger and Acquisition team of Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance
Limited. He is a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute, a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales, a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), and an ex-committee member of the Disciplinary
Panel of HKICPA.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph, aged 43, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in 1998. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a
fellow member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is a senior
partner and founder of the accounting firm Messrs. Li, Ko & Yan, Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, aged 63, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2004. He is a graduate
of the University of Harvard with a Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration. Mr. Chu has served a number of international sizable
institutions. Since 1996, Mr. Chu has joined Sinochem Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (“Sinochem”) (formerly as “Wah Tak Fung Holdings
Limited”), a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as director and is responsible
for the overall corporate planning and decision making of Sinochem. He
is also the non-executive director of Jiuzhou Development Co., Limited
(formerly as “Zhu Kuan Development Co., Limited”), Catic Shenzhen
Holdings Limited, Catic International Holdings Limited and Hong Kong
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited. Those companies are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. He has been a member of a number
of consultative committees of the Hong Kong SAR Government
(“‘HKSAR”). In May 1998 and September 2000, Mr. Chu was re-elected
a legislative councilor for the HKSAR. In 2001, Mr. Chu was conferred
with an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Public Service by the Northeastern
University in the United States and also appointed as Unofficial Justice of
Peace by the HKSAR. In 2003, Mr. Chu was elected as a deputy of the
HKSAR to the 10th National Congress of the People’s Republic of China.

Dr. Jordan Z. Deng, aged 54, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2005. Dr. Deng is currently
the Chief Representative, Asia, International Risk Consultant, LLC, and
has over 20 years of experience in China-related business development
and management. He graduated from Fudan University in Shanghai,
China with a Bachelor of Law. He also holds a Master of Arts in
International Development from George Washington University, USA and
Doctor Degree in Public and Politics from Penn State University of USA.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Multi-media Product Trading:

The Group’s two primary operating objectives were (1) to attain profits
through diversification into new businesses by the existing subsidiaries of
the Group; and (2) to deploy the Group’s internal resources to search for
and expand businesses which have market potential and prospective
returns.

During the period under review, the Group had been able to accomplish
some of the operating objectives to the extent that existing subsidiaries
of the Group had successfully expanded the multi-media business.
Turnover contributed by the multi-media product trading business
amounted to HK$43.17 million, accounted for 85% of the Group’s total
turnover. This business segment mainly involved in the sales of the latest
media products and their components. A key factor to our successful
expansion in multi-media business was that the emerge of new media
products did provide us with fresh new opportunities and room for
development. The past experience accumulated by the Group in respect
of multi-media product business has now begun to generate return. In
order to achieve the targets of turnover and profit growth, the management
is required to devote more effort in introducing products with higher
margin and operating cost cutting.

Broadcasting and Content Production:

During the year under review, TV program production and distribution
from the Group’s subsidiary, Shanghai New Culture TV and Radio Making
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai New Culture”), contributed a turnover of HK$7.5
million and accounted for 15% of the Group’s total turnover, representing
a decrease of 66% from previous year's HK$22.0 million.

The major reason for the substantial drop in turnover was the severe
competition between stand-alone TV program production companies. In
the absence of a stable broadcasting platform, there was a constraint to
the sustainable development in this market segment. The management
team is now reviewing the situation of the business segment and seeking
solution for it.

The Group had substantially completed a major part of its restructure
and re-engineering initiatives in the past year, and consequently had
become more efficient in its operation and lowered the administrative
expenses. Administrative expenses of the Group amounted to HK$25.3
million, representing a significant decrease of 60% from previous year’s
HK$63.3 million. The management team will keep deploying its existing
fund and financing facilities to identify and explore new business with
greater market potential and promising earning prospect.

6 Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

E¥oE

ZHREERER:

AEE ERLERRIEZRMA: —RER
BERBTARTRA - EHEFEAFEER A
rilism: —ERRBEES SHYBRB —&
FEAMBEBEIRRSARABNER-

REBESRHE AEEEERBHEEERZ &
ERETFAREKRNARSEEER -AEH
REEEZHBEEMNEETARBE
43,174,0007T 15 & B 48 & 3£ 5885% © LIRS
FESRFAUERERRBHENEBE KD
RS ERBEENEZRAR A REEER
MR ROFTHERE e MER  UEHE
HEERBEENKCRRAREE RS HEEE
FEEEES| ATIBER S E SRR KL E /KA
NEZERAFEREZ

EEREE RE:

EEBELE—F AEERXRBEFLA [ LEHX
CFEFEEREEERAA] ([ EEFHXE])
WEEREGERENEE T E 2 EXBRAEE
7,512,0007C fh E BB E X XH15%  REF[F
HR 7 #22,015,0007T 5 2 66% °

HHDERBABBE TRENEZRARE—H
TORMBREARNBEFAN ELARTER
HFamGEET FEERIIIRG -EEE
IR % EB 22 EBRRFRKEIRM A

KBBE—FARBEE TR AN ER MIEH
mR SET R EAREEY BRE TR
£ BT X %8 #%25,300,0007T REF
7] 4378 #63,300,0007T * K& 260% © B E
ETEHMBREESRBE SR AMA—
LEAMSEIREEMSABRNER-



PROSPECTS

The Group continued in its new media business with some success.
However due to keen competition and higher operating costs, our gross
margin was not sufficient to cover our operating costs. The management
plans to expand the future earning potential of the new media business
with the intent of broadening our revenue base and bringing higher
margin products to lessen our operating loss. The Group will continue to
seek investment in businesses including trading in listed securities that
would enhance long term value for our shareholders. The directors will
seek synergistic, high growth and or niche businesses where our
management has inherent expertise and experience. Our future success
will depend on the management team to curtail losses and to seize new
business opportunities that will bring profit growth potential. In meeting
the stated objectives above, the directors will also seek to strengthen our
capital base through the debt and equity markets.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our management team and
staff for their dedication and hard work throughout the year.

Chen Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results

The Group’s consolidated turnover amounted to approximately HK$51
million (2007: approximately HK$32 million), representing a significant
increase of 59% over that of 2007. The growth was mainly due to the
satisfactory trading performance of multi-media products.

The loss attributable to the shareholders of the year ended 31 March
2008 was approximately HK$722,000 (2007: HK$67 million), representing
a substantial reduction of approximately 99% when compared with that
of 2007.

Loss per ordinary share was reduced to HKO.13 cents (2007: HK12.05
cents).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s current ratio was 1.5 (2007: 0.7), with
current assets of approximately HK$63.1 million (2007: HK$37.4 million)
against current liabilities of approximately HK$42.6 milion (2007: HK$53.5
million). Cash and cash equivalents were approximately HK$32.2 million
(2007: HK$2.8 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 March 2008 was 5.78 (2007: 2.36).

The Group’s working capital is mainly financed through internal generated
cashflow, borrowings and equity financing. There has not been any
change in the Group’s funding and treasury policies during the year, and
the Group continues to follow the practice of prudent cash management.
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Treasury Policies

The Group adopts conservative funding and treasury policies in cash
and financial management. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits
mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi (“RMB”) and US
dollars. The Group’s financing requirements are regularly reviewed by the
management.

The Group adopts a prudent treasury policy whereas majority of its bank
balances and cash is denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
US dollars and placed on short-term deposit.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Foreign Exchange

The Group’s assets and liabilities were principally denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from these currency exposures, primarily with respect
to RMB. At 31 March 2008, if HK$ had strengthened/weakened by 10%
against the RMB, equity would have been approximately HK$339,000
(2007: HK$309,000) higher or lower. As the Hong Kong dollars is pegged
to the US dollars and the fluctuation in exchange rate against Hong
Kong dollars is minimal, the Group’s exposure to this currency exchange
risk is insignificant.

Charges on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

The Group leases a motor vehicle under a finance lease arrangement to
be expired in May 2009. Save as disclosed herein, the Group did not
have any charges on assets or have any material contingent liabilities as
at 31 March 2008.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had a total of 14 employees (2007: 20).
Employees’ remuneration packages are reviewed and determined by

reference to the market pay and individual performance.

The staff benefits include contributions to mandatory provident fund,
medical scheme and share option scheme.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“the Code”) in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance practice.

In the opinion of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”), the
Company has complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2008 except for certain deviations disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
(comprising the Company and its subsidiaries) and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive Directors and
senior management who perform their duties under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer.

The Board currently consists of five Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The members of the Board held four regular meetings during the year.
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting
agenda, and each director may request inclusion of items in the agenda.
Adequate and appropriate information are circulated normally three days
in advance of board meetings to the Directors. Minutes of board meetings
and committee meetings are taken by the Company Secretary and are
available for all board members.
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The members of the Board and the attendance of each member are as EFEeNERSKNECHFELEOT:
follows:
Directors Number of attendance
= R
Executive Directors Chen Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
HITES BRE (E/EFHITEARS)
Ma Jian Ying (Deputy Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
B (BlfTBAEZ)
Walter Stasyshyn 0/4
Man Ming 1/4
X A
Tung Hsiao-Chi (Note 1) 0/4
=N (HtaET)
Chau Shing Yim, David (Note 2) 0/4
BEAK (HtaF2)
Independent Non-executive Directors  Yan Tat Wah, Joseph 4/4
BUEMITES HEE
Chu Yu Lin, David 4/4
K 4 %
Jordan Z. Deng 4/4
B
Notes: Bt
1. Ms. Tung Hsiao-Chi resigned as an Executive Director of the 1. ENHLZTRZTETEFNATZBHEHAER

Company on 12 September 2007.

2. Mr. David Chau Shing Yim was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 1 May 2008.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David and Dr. Jordan Z. Deng
and considers them to be independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship with each other except that Ms. Ma Jian Ying is the
sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Company. Given the nature and business
objective of the Company, the Board has a balance of skill and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
list of directors and their respective biographies are set out on pages 4
and 5 of this annual report respectively.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chen Ping, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Although under A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual, the Board believes that this structure
enables the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
efficiently and believes it is beneficial to the business development of the
Company. However, the Company will review the current structure as
and when it becomes appropriate in future.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under A.4.1 of the Code, the Non-executive Directors should be appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election. Currently, not all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term.
However, all Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company, and their appointment will be reviewed when they are due for
re-election.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management of the
Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee had not held any meeting.
However, the Remuneration Committee agreed that the remuneration of
all Directors and senior management for the year ended 31 March 2008
should remain the same as it was for the year ended 31 March 2007 in
view of the financial performance of the Group.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the grant of share
options to certain eligible persons as rewards to their contributions to
Group in the past years and as incentive for their continuing efforts to
promote the interests of the Group.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The duties
and functions of the Nomination Committee recommended in the Code
are performed by the Board collectively with no Director being involved in
fixing his/her own terms of appointment and no Independent non-
executive Director being involved in assessing his own independence.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Group was charged HK$385,000 for the auditing
services by the Company’s auditors, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing audited financial reporting

process and internal control system of the Group and providing advice
and comments to the Board.
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During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings. Members of
the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member are as follows:

Directors Number of attendance

= IR B
Independent non-executive Directors  Yan Tat Wah, Joseph (Chairman) 3/3
BUEMITES HUEE (EE)

Chu Yu Lin, David 3/3

K 2 B4

Jordan Z. Deng 3/3

B 5 iy

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following duties:

- reviewed with the management and the external auditors the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007
and the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2007;

- receiving management’s report on the effective implementation of
internal control system covering financial, operational, and
procedural compliance;

- reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory
requirements; and

- reviewed the terms of engagement of the new auditor with
recommendation to the Board for approval.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting
and meets the requirements of rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts of the
Group for the relevant accounting periods under applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, the results of operations and cashflows of the Group. In preparing
the accounts for the six months ended 30 September 2007 and for the
year ended 31 March 2008, the Directors have adopted suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently. The accounts for the
reporting year have been prepared on a going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The internal control system of the Group is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievements of the Group’s objectives.
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The Directors of the Company present the Directors’ Report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16(b) to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 23.

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 31 March 2008 (2007:
Nil) and the Board did not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2008 (2007: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in note 27(a) to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 124 to the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are
set out in note 27(c) to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, at 31 March 2008, the
Company cannot distribute any of its reserves to the shareholders of the
Company. However, the Company’s share premium account of
HK$13,710,000 as at 31 March 2008 can be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers were less than 72% of the total
turnover. The aggregate purchases contributed to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 72% of the Group’s cost of sales.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company in office during the year and up to the
date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Chen Ping (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ma Jian Ying (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Walter Stasyshyn

Mr. Man Ming

Ms. Tung Hsiao-Chi

Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David
Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph #
Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David #
Dr. Jordan Z. Deng #

Resigned on 12 September 2007
Appointed on 1 May 2008

# Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Bye-law 101 and Bye-law 110 of the Bye-laws, the Directors
who are retiring by rotation at the annual general meeting to be held on
16 September 2008 are Mr. Chen Ping, Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph, Mr.
Chu Yu Lin, David, Dr. Jordan Z. Deng and Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David,
who being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors as regards their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the independent Non-Executive
Directors is independent to the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the year, none of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered
into any service agreements with any members of the Group (excluding
contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no contract or
arrangement entered into by any member of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) subsisting as at 31 March 2008.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2008, the interests of the Directors and their respective
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Hong Kong (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
to Securities Transactions (the “Model Code”) by Directors of the Listed
Issuers were as follows:

(1) Long Positions in the Shares

EEsRBEN

FABERRARREERRBFASEE
BEZEFEANEE 2 EMKE QBRI ZEM
BB (R—FAERMKEEIAR-—FAR
M E CEERERIN FTURELEZRBEAH
BRIN) ©

EERERGVRBERS 2R

B RS M I EE N SEARRRE
MK ERARREMNBLAR (AREIAEE])
AL B HELHIR _BENF=ZRA=1—
BIAFHE-

EscRsEs

R-ZBZNF=ZA=1t—"B ZREFEEEFSE
BZBMBATRARBREMERZE (EER
BEESFIAEGRY (EX LRGN
XVER) 2 Biin AR P BB RIBES LB
BHOIEIIEREARBALATEZERL
MAXRE ETAREFTETEFR HHIRE
STRI(MRESTR]) AHNE AR REBBE
REMERAR ([BRPT]) 2SN T

(1) REROFzZHEER

Number of Shares
and underlying

securities held as at Approximate

Name of Director Capacity 31 March 2008 % of holding
R-ZZEENE=A=+—H R
EEpgA 54 FiERGREEESEE BRAES K
Mr. Chen Ping Interest of a controlled corporation 73,340,000 13.19%
(Note)
BRFSE 4 RPEHID R 73,340,000 13.19%
(Kiat)
Note: Bt et

Such Shares were owned by Tide Time Holdings limited (“Tidetime”)
which was beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Chen Ping (the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company), 5% by
Ms. Ma Jianhua (spouse of Mr. Chen Ping), 10% by Ms. Ma Jian Ying
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director of the Company and
sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping), 3% by Mr. Walter Stasyshyn (Executive
Director) and 10% by Mr. Man Ming (Executive Director). Mr. Chen Ping
and Ms. Ma Jianhua were deemed to be interested in such Shares by
virture of Part XV of the SFO.
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@)

Rights to acquire Shares

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company
as at 31 March 2008 were as follows:

(2 BERGZERN

EFR-TEN\F=AS+-ARAEZ
AL BRI T

Number of Number of
Cancelled/ share options share options
Date of Exercisable forfeited outstanding at outstanding at Exercise
Name of Director grant period during the year 1 April 2007 31 March 2008 Price
R-ZBZLE R-BENF
mE—H =HA=+-—H
FREZH e R AT i AR AT 2
Espg BHAH TS JER¥ EBREZSE BREZA TEE
HK$
ke
Ms. Tung Hsiao-Chi 14.3.2005 1.7.2007 - 100,000 100,000 Nil £& 0.136
Bt 31.12.2007
—ZTTRHF —ETLF
—RA+tmA +tH—HZE
—ETLF
+-A=+—"H
14.3.2005 1.7.2008 - 100,000 100,000 Nil £ 0.149
31.12.2008
“ZTHF —EENF
=ATHEA +tA—HZE
ZETNFE
+-A=+—H
Total A& 5T 200,000 Nil 4%

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company or their spouse or children
under age of 18 years to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
or had exercised such rights.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme and details of
movements in the Company’s share options during the year to subscribe
for shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company granted
under the share option schemes are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2008, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the share option
schemes represents approximately 0.35% (Outstanding options as at
31.3.2008 are 1,932,000 and capital as at 31.3.2008 is 556,037,120
shares) of the issued share capital of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2008, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of their relevant interests
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.

As at 31 March 2008, so far as are known to the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company, the shareholders (other than the Directors or
the chief executive of the Company whom'’s interests were disclosed in
page 16 and 17 of this annual report) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more
of the Company’s issued share capital, which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

FERR

R-ZEZNF=ZA=+—"HB BKLEXFAEER
METESNERIN REESRAEREIE
BHEREFEZCARATERRECMER
A TNIERREHEARARAREZTANRART
2B RARERD TR 2

R-ZBZNF=ZA=1t—"B RARBEFH
TETRABMA UTHRE(RRARESFRK
ERITHABRIN EEARAFREI16E17
BRE)RARBZERO REEROHTHEE R
REBEE S ME GO EXVERA QA HEN
RRAREETRASRHIA L ZERIOKE

No. of Shares and
underlying securities held
as at 31 March 2008
R-BENF=A=+—AH

BENROREBEESHE

Name of Substantial % of
Shareholder Capacity Long position holding
FTERRER E27) L3y BRAESH
Tidetime (Note 1) Corporation 73,340,000 13.19
R=IE (Mtat1) =
Ms. Ma Jianhua Family 73,340,000 13.19
BRELL B
Sun Media Investment Holdings Corporation 37,000,000 6.65

Limited (“Sun Media”) (Note 2) = E
BHIEBIREFR AT

(TE5eBeel) (Haz2)
Mr. Wong Wing Hong (Note 3) Interest of Controlled 84,884,210 15.27

Corporation
ESLINIE Eo

EmAKBEEE (B3E3)
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Notes:

1. Such Shares were owned by Tide Time Holdings Limited (“Tidetime”)
which was beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Chen Ping (the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company), 5% by
Ms. Ma Jianhua (spouse of Mr. Chen Ping), 10% by Ms. Ma Jian Ying
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company
and sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping), 3% by Mr. Walter Stasyshyn (Executive
Director of the Company) and 10% by Mr. Man Ming (Executive Director
of the Company). Mr. Chen Ping and Ms. Ma Jian Hua were deemed to
be interested in such Shares by virture of Part XV of the SFO.

2. Such Shares were owned by Sun Media which was beneficially owned
as to 72% by Ms. Yang Lan. Ms. Yang Lan is deemed to be interested in
the same parcel of Shares held by Sun Media by virtue of Part XV of the
SFO. Mr. Bruno Wu Zheng is the spouse of Ms. Yang Lan and Mr. Wu
Bruno Zheng'’s interests in these shares are as a result attributed to Ms.
Yang Lan for this purpose.

3. The interests of Mr. Wong Wing Hong in the underlying securities represent
the unlisted convertible notes with a principal amount of
HK$19,353,600.20 issued by the Company to Better Run Investments
Limited on 16 July 2007. Such unlisted convertible notes may be
converted into shares of the Company at initial conversion price of
HK$0.228 per shares (subject to adjustment). Better Run Investments
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wong Wing Hong.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2008.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31 March
2008.

LITIGATIONS

Details of litigations are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph, Mr. Chu Yu
Lin, David and Dr. Jordan Z. Deng, has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2008.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report on pages 10 to 13 of this annual
report.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and, after
specific enquiry, confirmed that all Directors of the Company have
complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2008.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2008.

AUDITORS

The Company was notified by CCIF CPA Limited (“CCIF”) of their
resignation on 4 January 2008. In filing the casual vacancy following the
resignation of CCIF, Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan have been appointed
by the Board as auditors of the Company with effect from 25 April 2008.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan as auditors
of the Company for the year ending 31 March 2009.

By Order of the Board
Chen Ping
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008
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TING HO KWAN & CHAN

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tidetime Sun
(Group) Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 23 to 123, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March
2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 34(a) to the
financial statements. The Company is the 1st defendant for alleged breach
of agreements in respect of the sale of shares in the share capital of TV
Viagens (Macau), S.A.R.L. between the Plaintiffs and its former
wholly-owned subsidiary (the 2nd defendant). The Plaintiffs sought
damages of approximately HK$76,862,000 or such an amount as the
court may determine, interest thereon, costs and/or other relief, from the
Company. Based on legal advice, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the Company has a very good chance of successfully
defending the case and hence the claim would not result in losses to the
Company. The directors of the Company consider the allegations to be
without merit and too remote to be held against the Company, and no
provision for any liability that may result has been made in the financial
statements.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong, 18 July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

e WER

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i Z —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
Kt it BETFT BT

Turnover —F ] 4 50,686 32,050
Cost of sales 5 B R (47,380) (28,086)
Gross profit EF 3,306 3,964
Other revenue =g 5 4,107 1,338
Other income and gains, net E U A Kom ) F 58 6 25,946 =
Distribution costs Pal | DN (2,561) (2,660)
Administrative expenses TEAX (25,261) (63,257)
Impairment loss on goodwill ez REBE 17 (3,184) (10,749)
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEZREREE 15 (841) =
Impairment loss on trade receivables B S EWBER 2B 22(c) (1,128) (1,549)
Reversal of impairment loss H i ERERR 2

on other receivables B E R B O 63 3,333
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries i & i B 2 7

(B518) /=% 7(d) (1) 2,592

Profit/(loss) from operations LSRR (BR) 446 (66,988)
Finance costs B & B AR 7(a) (1,168) (29)
Loss before taxation MREATE 18 7 (722) 67,017)
Income tax FRiS 8 - =
Loss for the year KEEEE (722) 67,017)
Attributable to: P4 :

Equity holders of the Company RAGIEREFEA 11 (722) (67,017)

Minority interests DR E R - =
Loss for the year REEEFE (722) 67,017)
Loss per share BEREE 12

Basic AR HK(0.13) cents il HK(12.05) cents /&1l

Diluted e N/A T 3E N/A 73 A

The notes on pages 29 to 123 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

F20F123E 2 MEBRREFGEMBRELZ

Annual Report 2008 3 23



Consolidated Balance Sheet

hREBEERER

As at 31 March2008 R —ZEZ N \F=A=1+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt st BT T BEF T BB F T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and Y BB R
equipment 14 2,013 12,598
Intangible assets mEE 15 - 841
Goodwill Bk 17 - 3,184
Interest in an associate REEE N E) 2 18 - =
Other non-current financial & 1‘@ IETR B B 7
assets BE 19 1,092 3
3,105 16,626
Current assets REBEE
Broadcasting programmes &% & B 20 15,868 20,927
Trading securities BHJE 21 338 6,207
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & H fib f& Ut BR 3¢ 22 14,687 7,388
Cash and cash equivalents & &k ERIFE£IEE 23 32,194 2,853
63,087 37,375
Current liabilities nBAE
Trade and other payables & 5 N H h fEFBR 24 42,380 53,279
Obligation under AT S A
a finance lease 25 234 234
42,614 53,513
Net current RBEE(AH)
assets/(liabilities) FE 20,473 (16,138)
Total assets less HEERRDAE
current liabilities 23,578 488
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible notes Al E = & 26 20,028 =
Obligation under A& M E R
a finance lease 25 39 20,067 273 273
NET ASSETS BEEFE 3,511 215
CAPITAL AND RESERVES [ 7 % fi {8 27(a)
Share capital PR 5,560 5,560
Reserves s (2,049) (5,345)
Total equity attributable A FEEZTEA
to equity holders of PEfh B A48 5
the Company 3,511 215
Minority interests LR RER - -
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 3,511 215
The financial statements on pages 23 to 123 were approved and F3ER128B 2 BERENR_ZEZENF LA+

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 July 2008

Chen Ping
Director
B P
EFE

The notes on pages 29 to 123 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEREER

Asat 31 March2008 R —EZEN\NF=H=4+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

2008 2007
—EENFE —EELF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt BETF T BETF T BT T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MRHIB A A ZKRE 16 - 6,094
Other non-current financial  H fib 3£ 7% 8 B4 7%
assets BE 19 - 1
- 6,995
Current assets RBEE
Trading securities BHIWE 21 338 6,207
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & H fih f& Ut BR 3¢ 22 52,984 9,487
Cash and cash equivalents IR& Rk ERIBELEA 23 646 547
53,968 16,241
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E M EMEER 24 11,736 38,672
11,736 38,672
Net current REBEE,
assets/(liabilities) (BE) FE 42,232 (22,431)
Total assets less current #EEERREBEFE
liabilities 42,232 (15,436)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible notes Al ] RR IR 26 20,028 =
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) & &~ (&1&) F& 22,204 (15,436)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES % 75 % f 1% 27(b)
Share capital % A% 5,560 5,560
Reserves & 16,644 (20,996)
TOTAL EQUITY REAH 22,204 (15,436)

The financial statements on pages 23 to 123 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 July 2008

Chen Ping
Director
B P
EF

The notes on pages 29 to 128 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

FO3E123B UM BERER —_ZEZENF LA+
N\B&E S48 RET %

Ma Jian Ying
Director
FER

EF

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i £ —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ELARREREAEE
Share Convertible
Share Share Contributed ~ Exchange Capital option note  Fair value Accumulated Minority Total
capital  premium  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses ~ Sub-Total interests equity
BRE  WaRK YERR
K BRHEE EHES EXRE E4ARG R FBRE LTERG RiESR it Bi it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
A¥Tr  A¥ftn  E¥fn EETn  ARTn  ABfn EETn BETn BBfn BETn  BkTn BB
At 1 April 2006 RZZZAERA-A 5,560 13,710 84,798 197 3,490 43 = = (40,493) 67,305 = 67,305
Exchange diferenceson  EGHHERR
translation of financial ip
statements of overseas ~ EXEE
subsicliaries - - - (114) - - - - - (114) - (114)
Released upon disposal of ~ HEMB A A% B
subsiclaries - - - 2 - - - - - 2 - 2
Fuity-setfled share-based ~ RAZEERNHR 5
transactions - - - - - 14 - - - 14 - 14
Share options lapsed KinmheE - - - - - 28) = = 28 = = =
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - brotn)  Ton) - (BT01)
At 31 March 2007 and RZZTLE
1 Apr 2007 ZA=t+-Bk
“Z3ERA-A 5,560 13,710 84,798 110 3490 29 - - (107,482 215 - 215
Exchange diferences on & ESKEAA
tranglation of financia BBAECELER
statements of overseas
subsidliaries - - - (486) - - - - - (486) - (486)
Fuity-setfled share-based ~ RAZEERNHR 5
transactions = = = = = 7 = = - 7 - 7
Share options lapsed Kinmhe - - - - - 29 = = 29 = = =
Recognition of BRTHREEZ
equity component EaHH
of convertible notes - - - - - - 6,074 - - 6,074 - 6,074
Fair value changes ARHERBEEY
on avalable-for-sae R
financial assets - - - - - - - (1,677) - (1,677) - (1,677)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - 722) 122) - 122)
At 31 March 2008 RZBENE
ZA=t-H 5,560 13,710 84,798 (376) 3,490 7 6,074 (1,577)  (108,175) 3511 - 3511

The notes on pages 29 to 123 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MEBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i Z —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

2008 2007
—EENFE —TTLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kzt BT T BT
Operating activities REER
Loss before taxation BrEiRIE 1A (722) 67,017)
Adjustments for: BUATHEBEH A
Depreciation e 14 2,244 5,583
Amortisation of broadcasting RN B 2 BEiE
programmes 20 7,994 18,907
Reversal of impairment loss on HEi U AR 2
other receivables BEEEEE (63) (3,333)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HERBATZ
subsidiaries BB (=) F5E 7(c) 1 (2,592)
Impairment loss on =) g vl
trade receivables BEEE 22(c) 1,128 1,549
Impairment loss on goodwill a2 REEE 17 3,184 10,749
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEZREBE 15 841 =
Finance costs B & A AR 7(a) 1,168 29
Interest income FEWA 5 (885) (75)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE FHEX
plant and equipment B Rl 8,342 76
Net realised and unrealised loss BHKREERR
on trading securities REREBEFE 3,795 44,931
Gain on disposal of e E B
available-for-sale financial assets B EWE (2,925) =
Waiver of amounts due to ex-subsidiaries TR B RETH B AR FKIE (1,021) =
Equity-settled share-based BAZEERNDRSHAZ
payment expense 7 14
Operating profit before changes RTEEESEHAZ
in working capital mEER 23,088 8,821
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 I H Ath fE Uk BR 5K
other receivables () (8,940) 5,052
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 I H A BR OB (12,075) (21,660)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREERELE (ER) 2
operating activities ReRE 2,073 (7,787)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mMERITRER

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i £ —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

2008 2007
—EENF —ZTEELF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt aF BEFT B TFoT
Investing activities REEDR
Expenditure on broadcasting programmes EE&I B 2 2 20 (972) (3,388)
Payment for the purchase of property, SNBEWE WE R&E
plant and equipment (418) (88)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEWE BERZREZ
plant and equipment Fr135K78 565 297
Proceeds from sale of trading securities HEBEBH S RIA 2,074 2,277
Proceeds on sale of PEAHEENBEEZ
available-for-sale financial assets FTiSsk3E 2,902 =
Disposal of subsidiaries & BB A A 31(c) - 97)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHLNEVKEE
financial assets (2,669) —
Interest received BB 885 75
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZHEE
investing activities () 2B & FE 2,367 (924)
Financing activities MEEE
Capital element of finance lease ENBERERESZ
rentals paid BEARE o (234) (235)
Finance costs paid BT E KA (391) =
Interest element of finance lease ENBREHERS 2
rentals paid IPSR= (29) (29)
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes 21T ] IR ZE R Fr 5 1A 25,354 =
Net cash generated BMETBHEE (FEA) 2
from/(used in) financing activities HeFE 24,700 (264)
Net increase/(decrease)incashand BERZFRSEHZ
cash equivalents #in, (Rd) B8 29,140 (8,975)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April REA—HZHER
ZRRELEAR 2,853 11,525
Effect of foreign exchange EREE &
rate changes 201 303
Cash and cash equivalents R=A=+—HZzEER
at 31 March EEBELER 23 32,194 2,853

The notes on pages 29 to 123 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & B AE

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i Z —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on 30
October 1992 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
its shares are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to
the annual report. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 16(b).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) and the financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless
otherwise stated.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”),
amendment and interpretations (“Int”) (“new HKFRS”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”),
which are first effective for the Group’s current financial year.

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements: Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(FRIC) — Int 7 Applying the Restatement

Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(FRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2
HK(FRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(FRIC) — Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment
HK(FRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i £ —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

2.

30

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRS had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRS
are summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard introduces new disclosures relating to
financial instruments and does not have any impact on
the classification and valuation of the Group’s financial
instruments, or the disclosures relating to taxation and
trade and other payables. These new disclosures are
shown in notes 32(a) and 32(b) to the financial statements.

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make disclosures
that enable users of the financial statements to evaluate
the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
managing capital. These new disclosures are shown in
note 32(c) to the financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 7 Applying the Restatement
Approach under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

This interpretation provides guidance on how to apply
requirements of HKAS 29 in a reporting period in which
an entity identifies the existence of hyperinflation in the
economy of its functional currency, when the economy
was not hyperinflationary in the prior period. As none of
the Group entities have a currency of a hyperinflationary
economy as its functional currency, this interpretation is
not relevant to the Group’s operations.
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2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & B AE

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i Z —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

2. IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” to be applied to any arrangements in which
some or all of the goods received cannot be specifically
identified, in particular where equity instruments are issued
for consideration which appears to be less than the fair
value. As the Company has only issued equity instruments
to its employees in accordance with the Company’s share
option scheme, the interpretation does not have any impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

This interpretation requires that the date to assess whether
an embedded derivative is required to be separated from
the host contract and accounted for as a derivative is the
date that the Group first becomes a party to the contract,
with reassessment only if there is a change to the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows. This interpretation
is not relevant for the Group’s operations and does not
have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

This interpretation prohibits the impairment losses
recognised in an interim period on goodwill and
investments in equity instruments and in financial assets
carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent balance
sheet date. This interpretation does not have any impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i £ —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

2.

32

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued)

(9) HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS2 - Group and Treasury
Share Transactions

This interpretation provides guidance on whether share-
based transactions involving treasury shares or involving
group entities (for example, options over a parent’s shares)
should be accounted for as equity-settled or cash-settled
share-based payment transactions in the stand-alone
financial statements of the parent and group companies.
This interpretation does not have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRS, which also
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for trading securities
and available-for-sale financial assets, which are stated at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 37.

The Group has not early applied any new standard,
amendment or interpretation that has been issued but is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 38).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent
of any minority interests. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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3.

34

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. Minority
interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the
total profit or loss for the year between minority interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess,
and any further losses applicable to the minority, are
charged against the Group’s interest except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest
is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

Amounts due from holders of minority interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly controlled entity, over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for by the
equity method of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost. The Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified
on acquisition (see note 3(k)).

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition results
is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves.

The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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3.

36

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
shown separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in
investments in associates.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Any excess of the Company’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing.

Financial assets

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date when the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
measured at fair value plus, in the case of the investments
other than trading securities, transaction costs. Financial
assets other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates are further categorised into the following
classifications for the measurement after initial recognition.

(i) Trading securities

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as trading securities included in current
assets and are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any attributable transaction costs and gain
or loss on the fair value changes of trading
securities are recognised in income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise
when the Group provides money, goods or services
directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivable. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date which are classified as
non-current assets.

Held-to-maturity investments

Investment in debt securities with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity that the
Company has the position intention and ability to
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments, which are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses, if any.

Available-for-sale-financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories and are stated in the balance sheet at
fair value. Gain or loss on fair value changes of
available-for-sale financial assets is recognised
directly in equity in the fair value reserve, except
for impairment losses and, in the case of monetary
items such as debt securities, foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised directly in
income statement.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly in equity is
recognised in income statement. Where the
available-for-sale financial assets are interest-
bearing, interest calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in income statement.

Investments in unquoted equity instruments whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unguoted equity instruments,
are measured at cost less any impairment losses.
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3.

38

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Financial assets (Continued)
(iv)  Available-for-sale-financial assets (Continued)

Fair value of an instrument on initial recognition is
normally the transaction price, unless it is estimated
by using a valuation technique when part of the
consideration given or received is for something
other than the investment.

After initial recognition, the fair value of an
investment quoted in an active market is based
on the current bid price and, for investments not
quoted in an active market, the Company
establishes the fair value of such investment by
using a valuation technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions between knowledgeable
willing parties, if available, reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially
the same, discounted cash flows analysis and
option pricing models.

(f) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is charged immediately to income statement, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 3(k)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
income statement on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation, except leasehold improvements, is calculated
to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method (2007: reducing balance method)
over their estimated useful lives at the rate of 20% per
annum. Leasehold improvements is amortised over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than five years. The change of
accounting policy on depreciation is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial positions.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets
Copyright

Copyright costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 3(k)).

Amortisation of the copyright costs is charged to income
statement on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired copyright period or their estimated useful lives.
Copyright is amortised over its useful life from the date it
is available for use. Both the period and method of
amortisation are reviewed annually.
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3.

40

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@i

0

Broadcasting programmes

Broadcasting programmes are stated at cost less amounts
expensed and any impairment losses considered by the
management. Cost comprises direct expenditure and an
appropriate portion of production overheads. The cost of
the broadcasting programmes is expensed by way of
amortisation on systematic allocation of the depreciable
amount of the broadcasting programmes over their
estimated useful lives of not more than twelve months
from the date when the broadcasting programmes are
available for use. Both the period and method of
amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Company
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when
the leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the assets to the Company. Al
other leases are classified as operating leases.

(i) Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
in the balance sheet at amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased assets, o, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease. The
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
on the finance leases are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. All assets held under finance
leases are classified as property, plant and
equipment, except for those properties held to
earn rental income which are classified as
investment properties in the balance sheet.

Depreciation and impairment losses are calculated
and recognised in the same manner as the
depreciation and impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment as set out in note 3(k), except
for the estimated useful lives cannot exceed the
relevant lease terms, if shorter.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liabilities. The finance charge is recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

Operating leases

Where the Company is the lessee, lease payments
under an operating lease are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Where the Company is the lessor, assets
leased by the Company under operating leases
are included in non-current assets and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited
to the income statement on a straight line basis
over the lease period.

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other
than investments in subsidiaries and associates:
see note 3(k)(ii)) and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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3.

42

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

- For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 i Z —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

- For available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in equity is removed from equity
and is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in
income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale financial
assets are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised directly
in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment loss on bad
and doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

44

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates
(except for those classified as held for sale
or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale);

- intangible assets; and
- goodwiill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESEHE (&)

(k) EERE (&)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Rt ZEE B E (B)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwiill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed. A reversal of an impairment
loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.
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3.

46

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
()] Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and, after initial recognition, at amortised cost less
any impairment loss on bad and doubtful debts, except
for the following receivables:

- interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting being immaterial, that are measured
at cost less any impairment loss on bad and
doubtful debts; and

- short term receivables with no stated interest rate
and the effect of discounting being immaterial, that
are measured at their original invoiced amount less
any impairment loss on bad and doubtful debts.

(m) Convertible notes

(i) Convertible notes that contain an equity
component

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an
equity component.

An initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised
as the liability component is recognised as the
equity component. Transaction costs that relate to
the issue of a compound financial instrument are
allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised
in profit or loss on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the convertible
note reserve until either the note is converted or
redeemed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Convertible notes (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Convertible notes that contain an equity
component (Continued)

If the note is converted, the convertible note
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, the convertible note reserve is released
directly to accumulated losses.

Other convertible notes

Convertible notes which do not contain an equity
component are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of
the convertible notes is measured at fair value and
presented as part of derivative financial instruments
(see note 3(f)). Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative
component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of the convertible note are allocated to the
liability and derivative components in proportion to
the allocation of proceeds. The portion of the
transactions costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is
recognised immediately in income statement.

The derivative component is subsequently
remeasured in accordance with note 3(f). The
liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised
in income statement on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method.

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of
the derivative and liability components are
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, any difference between the amount paid
and the carrying amounts of both components is
recognised in income statement.
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3.

48

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities (if any)
measured in accordance with note 3(r)(), trade and other
payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost, except
for the following payables:

- short-term payables with no stated interest rate and
the effect of discounting being immaterial, that are
measured at their original invoiced amount; and

- interest free loans from related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
being immaterial, that are measured at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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3.

50

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in income statement except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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3.

52

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in income
statement on initial recognition of any deferred
income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in income
statement over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with note 3(r)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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3.

54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in income
statement as follows:

i) Revenue from the production of
broadcasting programme

Revenue arising from the production of
broadcasting programme is recognised when
production is completed and the master copy is
delivered at the customers’ premises which is taken
to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the master copy and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

ii) Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in income statement in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

v)

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of
the investment goes ex-dividend.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary items, such as equities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets, are included in
the fair value reserve in equity.
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3.

56

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(U] Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

U)

(i

(i)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates
of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity. On consolidation, exchange
differences arising from the translation of
the net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised
in the income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in income statement in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group
or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

ii) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

V) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

Vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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3.

58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

v

(w)

Related parties (Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the primary reporting format and
geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intragroup balances and transactions are between group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is
based on similar terms as those available to other external
parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible
and intangible) that are expected to be used for more
than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,
corporate and financing expenses.
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4,

TURNOVER 4. EXH
The Group is principally engaged in the media-related business, AREFRLLREBEAIRLG BERE
including broadcasting, publishing and mutti-media product trading FORESERBEREERE K-
business.
Turnover represents income from broadcasting business and sales EXBEERER 2 BMARRABEFHE
value of multi-media products sold to customers. The amount of ZIRBEMZHEBE FARRAE:?
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows: HoWE=HRBET:
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Broadcasting business B %75 7,512 22,015
Publishing and multi-media i R K2 2% 15 88 2= o
product trading business BEEXED 43,174 10,035
50,686 32,050
OTHER REVENUE 5. Httlhz
2008 2007
—EEN\EF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$000
BEFT B F T
Interest income from bank deposits RITHERZFBHA 581 75
Interest income from others REEHMIER 2FEHKA 304 -
Total interest income on financial assets WIHEBREZARFEFEZ
not at fair value through profit or loss PGB E 2 A BIA 885 75
Rental income from leasing of MAREZHS KA
motor vehicles - 252
Rental income from sub-letting of HEBAYMEZHES WA
rented premises 408 233
Deposits forfeited RUWR S 2,800 =
Others Hth 14 778
4,107 1,338
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. HttWARENFEHE
2008 2007
—EENF —EEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Gain on disposal of HENHEEMBEE 2
available-for-sale financial assets 2,925 -
Waiver of amounts due to ex-subsidiaries A% X Bl i B A 5] 5K I8 1,021 -
Compensation received-income arising BUWEH Z i E— B — M
from profit guarantee MEARIEL 2
to a subsidiary (note 35(3)) i AR S PTE 4 2 WA
(K¢7#35(a)) 22,000 -
25,946 —
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7.

60

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

B i AT 8 1R

BREAEBEES AR, (GEA) T8 E:

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFT B F T
(@) Finance costs (@) ®ERE
Other interest paid HiBEAF B 25 =
Interest on convertible notes AR 1R 2 F) &
(note 26) (Krazo6) 1,114 -
Finance charges on obligation BERERES
under a finance lease mEEMR 29 29
Total interest expense I FE3E BB E DA
on financial liabilities not NEEFEZTB
at fair value through profit or loss BENSFAXE%E 1,168 29
(b)  Staff costs (including b) BIRK
directors’ remuneration) (BREEEHS)
Contributions to defined TE R FCR KA 8
contribution retirement plans 2R 177 126
Equity-settled share-based AR A4 H R D e =
payment expenses RIEE 7 14
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITENREMER 6,400 6,522
6,584 6,662
(c) Other items (c) HiE B
Depreciation e
— owned assets —BEEE 2,020 5,413
— leased asset —HEEE 224 170
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss HNE (M) /B 18 %58 (16) 128
Auditors’ remuneration % ERRT BN & 385 303
Operating lease charges: KEMEES H:
minimum lease payments MEHRE 2
in respect of property rentals =EES 3,182 3,416
Cost of inventories FEKA 47,380 28,086
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BWE K
plant and equipment R BB 8,342 76
Net realised loss BEZAFZ
on trading securities B0 EIE 5 1,318 2,476
Unrealised loss BERZAFZ
on trading securities * REIREHE 2,477 42 455

The amount of unrealised loss on trading securities for

the year ended 31 March 2008 arose from remeasurement
of the fair value of the Group’s investment in NextMart

Inc. at the balance sheet date.
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7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(d)

7. KRBAER (&)

8. INCOME TAX

(a)

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries (d HEHBATZ (BE) Wi
B
In view of uncertainty of the recovery of the outstanding HRFRNEEE ZHBAREH
balances in that the subsidiaries disposed of during the R E RIS EEE WEERTE
year were in financial difficulties and sustained losses, the AEIEBRG Bt EFRE
directors concluded that it is appropriate to make a full REBZEELEWNB AR 2K
impairment loss on the amount of HK$30,819,000 (2007: 185 #30,819,0007L (ZZEZ+
HK$21,943,000) due from these disposed subsidiaries £ B 121,043,0007T) 1E2 EUK
which were subsequently written off in full during the year. BEEEBHRE R MEBEIE
EEEBERFERZEME-
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Gain on disposal of HE B A a) s
subsidiaries (note 37) (Kf7£31) 30,818 24,535
Impairment loss on REERERMBAR
amounts due from RIBEL Z R EEE
subsidiaries upon disposal (30,819) (21,943)
(1) 2,592
8. FBH
Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) HMEWBRAZBIER:

represents:

For the year ended 31 March 2008, no provision for Hong
Kong profits tax has been made as the Group has no
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2007: Nil). In 2008, the government enacted a
change in the profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% for
the fiscal year 2008/2009.

No provision for overseas taxation has been made as the
overseas subsidiaries have no estimated assessable profits
arising from their jurisdictions during the years ended 31
March 2008 and 2007.

BE_ZZN\F=A=+—H1It
FE ARAEERF AL E G
AHEBRERDUE M - Bt W & A
LEEMNGEHBERE (ZETL
F8E) - R_FTT/N\F BFR
SH_ZZ\/—EZNHEF
BZRBHRRBI17.5%F KR
16.5%°

HREE-ZTTN\FR-_FTL
FZA=+T—BHLEFEBINNE
R EEEFAE RDARE S I A
J& SR8 ) - B AR B S B
B
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8.

62

INCOME TAX (Continued) 8. FiaH (&)
(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEZIHEREABEIHEZ
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: BFEREEROT:
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT B TFoT
Loss before taxation BrEiRIE 1A (722) 67,017)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BrFiRIEIB 2 BE B
calculated at the applicable LIE A E25% T E
rate of 25% (2007: 33%) (ZFTLF:33%) (180) (22,116)
Tax effect of non-taxable income AR U A 2 Fi 75 ?/ 2 (15,559) (8,723)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A 084 3 ) 2 i #6557 2 16,099 19,439
Tax effect of unused tax losses AEDAAEBEFRIEEE
not recognised ME e 1,119 418
Tax effect of additional tax deduction 584N B 18 = Hi 75 57 28 - 371
Effect of different taxation rate used H b el AR TR K 2 F &
in other tax jurisdictions (1,479) 10,611

Actual tax expense

With effect from 1 January 2008, the new Corporate
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the
“new CIT Law”) changes the corporate income tax rate to
25%. The change in applicable tax rate under the new
CIT Law is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

ERBIEX

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

BE-_ZTENF-—HA-—HE-PEARHK
MBI B RS ffdf((%ﬁm%ﬁﬁ 5
) IS EREHRR25% °
~5FR/£IETZLﬁH$R?£Az§Uﬁ\ EIN

SEZ2EBREARVBRABREAT
o,

R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & B AE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

9.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEM=S
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the RIEEERMEOIEI6IIEEECES
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: e T
Year ended 31 March 2008 BE-_ZEENF=A=+—RHLEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement  Share-based
Directors’ and benefits scheme payments 2008
fees inkind  contributions (note i) Total
He ERR EHREHE SN EN —EENE
xS BEMEA & (Kt ati) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BYT T BET T BT T BET T BET T
Executive directors HITES
Chen Ping bR - 1,261 12 - 1,273
Ma Jian Ying BER - 901 12 - 913
Walter Stasyshyn Walter Stasyshyn - 328 - - 328
Man Ming X B9 - - - - -
Tung Hsiao Chi B/ H
(resigned on 12.09.2007) (R-ZTLHE
NE+-B&®ET) - - - - -
Independent BIFHTES
non-executive directors )
Chu Yu Lin, David 5K 4 120 - - - 120
Yan Tat Wah, Joseph HiEE 120 - - - 120
Deng Jordan Z. B 120 - - - 120
360 2,490 24 - 2,874
Year ended 31 March 2007 HE T+ F=-A=1+—HIFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and benefits scheme payments 2007
fees in kind contributions (note i) Total
e RUR RIREE RSN EA —ETF
ExHe EMEH R (Ktzi) fEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT BT BT
Executive directors HITES
Chen Ping B - 1,080 12 = 1,092
Ma Jian Ying SRR - 720 12 = 732
Walter Stasyshyn Walter Stasyshyn - 503 - - 503
Man Ming X B - - - - -
Tung Hsiao Chi B/\H - 300 = 14 314
Independent BUEHTES
non-executive directors
Chu Yu Lin, David bl 120 = = = 120
Yan Tat Wah, Joseph W iE 120 - - - 120
Deng Jordan Z. B 5 i 100 - - - 100
340 2,603 24 14 2,981
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9.

10.

64

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Note:

i

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to
the directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The
value of these share options is measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set
out in note 3(p)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting. The
details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph
“Share option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 28.

For the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Company or as a compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration for the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007 .

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2007:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2007: one) individuals are as follows:

EEME (F)
Mzt

i) ERHENREAR R BERET 2
BRYTES s RRBEGIEE ZSHE
P& 8 2 (& {8 T AR 4% BT 53 3(p) (i) T 8 A
BOFEANRRBZAEE SR
Ret®E ARBZBE GREEEN
B ARBERATIAEREND
RUMEENBEFE R HEHR
HAR-ZEEDHE 2B (B
FERRRELBREZHE) EH
BERESEHREZ [ERETE ] —
B & Fff 5£28¢°

if) BHE_TZ)\FR_ZEZT+F=H
=+ —HIEFE ANEEIWET
ETAMNEZES ERREMALKE M
AREENEE S BHREE - ARES
ETENFRZZFETFLF=ZA=1+—
HEFE WESEEREPIRZRE
Mo

REHFAL

hE&EeHFALH ML (ZETLF:
mE) REE EMeES XM EomE-
F=HR(CETLF —FH) ALzBe
LT

2008 2007

—EEBNE —EELF

HK$°000 HK$’000

EB¥ET T BT T

Salaries and other emoluments o & E th BN 1,780 360
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B K 33 12
1,813 372

The emoluments of the three (2007: one) individuals with the

=R (ZETEF —R)BRFALZ

highest emoluments are within the following band: B FLATEE:
2008 2007
—EENFE —TE+F
Number of Number of
Individual individual
A# AZ
Nil — HK$1,000,000 75 ¥ T 2 4 11,000,0007T 3 1

For the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the five highest individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

BE_TTN\FR_ZFZELF=A=+
—BLEEFE - AKEYEXNHE TE
AN SESHEA LT EREFMAXE
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11.

12.

13.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company includes a profit of HK$31,559,000 (2007: a loss of
HK$80,520,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 27(b)).

LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
Group’s loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$722,000 (2007: HK$67,017,000) and the weighted
average of 556,037,000 ordinary shares (2007:
556,037,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares is calculated
as follows:

11.

12.

AAREREAEARGES

ARARERSAEAEBGLGREBIERES
BB ¥ 31,559,000 (ZEZELF B
1875 #80,520,0007T) ' ZBHEE R K
NAElZ T BhERIE (B aE27(0b)) °

BRER
(@ EBREXER

SREAREBTIREBEARA R
BEABWGEEEEIRBEEK
722,000 (ZEELF K
67,017,0007) R FAB B&EITE
1B 1% b0 #E - 19 #556,037,000%
T ER (- ZT + F
556,037,0008 LiMAR) st H - &
AR N BUIR T H 5 AT
/g.

Eanle

2008 2007

—BEN\E —RTLF

‘000 '000

F R Fhg

Issued ordinary shares at 1 April RIEOA—B2ZE8TEmk 556,037 556,037
Weighted average number of R=ZA=+t—HBzEBEH

ordinary shares at 31 March hiAEFE 8L 556,037 556,037

Diluted loss per share

No disclosure of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2007 was shown as the exercise prices of the
outstanding share options of the Company during the
year were higher than the average market prices of the
ordinary shares of the Company and accordingly there
was no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2008
has not been disclosed as the share options and
convertible notes outstanding during the year had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the year.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because
this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

13.

(b) EBRBEFER

HE-FTLF=A=+-A1
FEERFNARARTER
B 2 T8 (BRI A A ) B
ZFHTHE BN FRELE
AL BB EHE HLERRS
B i -

BE_TTA\F=-A=1+—HL
FRE BARFRARITERBER
ARBEREEHFAZBRERNE
BARBEZE QUEBRES
REEER-
DEHRE
DHEEMNZEAKRE 2 EBRICESER2
- REBMERUXRBOBEERERE

ERELN DEHRLBRNAEAEE
ZREBE B R E -
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13.  SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13.

Business segments
The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Broadcasting and content production: the production of
broadcasting programmes.

DEEE (&)

EX ik
AEBAUATEEZXEHOEA:
EEREE R EEE B RIE-

Publishing and multi-media product trading: the trade of multimedia HIRRZIREEREE ZREERE
products. Eo
Broadcasting and Publishing and multi-
content production media product trading Consolidated
EEREGE ®E HEREEBEREE e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZETtHF ZEENF ZTTtF ZEENF ZTTLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT EETFTT EBEFT BT B¥TrT  BET
Revenue from REIAREZ
external customers Wz 7,512 22,015 43,174 10,035 50,686 32,050
Segment results R e (7,460) (15,221) 9,114 (6,038) 1,654 (21,259)
Interest income FEMA 885 75
Unallocated corporate VAN S
operating income WA 422 1,263
Unallocated corporate Ao
operating expenses "EFRL (2,515) (47,067)

Profit/(loss) from operations 48 &% %,/ (&518)

Finance costs AR
Loss before taxation BRI A EE
Income tax Fris®i
Loss for the year FEESE
Depreciation and TEEFER

amortisation for the year iR 873 839
Impairment loss on: T3EE REESE:

— goodwill —-BHE 3,184 =

- intangible assets —BYEE 8 -
Impairment loss on B ZREWER

trade receivables REEE 1,128 1,549
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BE &

plant and equipment FE BB 30 24
Reversal of impairment loss £ fth JE U BR 2X

on other receivables AR E (63) (3,333)
Unallocated net realised and E &5 2 T OB

unrealised loss BEERRAES

on trading securities BEFE - =
Significant non-cash REFREHL

expenses (other than (FEREERIN

depreciation and

amortisation) 5,153 1,549

446 (66,988)
(1,168) (29)

(722)  (67,017)

(722)  (67,017)

1,371 4,744 2,244 5,583
- 10,749 3,184 10,749
- L 841 -
- ¥ 1,128 1,549

8,312 52 8,342 76
- i (63) (3,333)
- L - 44,931
- 10,749 5,153 12,298
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13.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

Broadcasting and
content production

13. D EH/E (F)

E¥o® (&)

Publishing and multi-
media product trading

Consolidated

EERHERE HEkSEEEREER =e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\E "—TTtF ZEENE C"ITTLF CZBEENFE "—TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFTT BETT BEFTT BETT BEFIT
Segment assets DEEEE 20,658 31,117 43,131 15,408 63,789 46,520
Unallocated corporate assets T2 B ¥ EE 2,403 7,481
Total assets BELE 66,192 54,001
Segment liabilties SEEE 30,450 30,995 1,847 10,495 32,297 50,490
Unallocated corporate THEt%EERE
liabilities 30,384 3,296
Total liabilities BERAE 62,681 53,786
Capital expenditure incured  FREL Z
during the year ERAX 393 88 25 = 418 88
Geographical segments HESE

The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide basis, but
participates in two principal economic environments. Mainland
China is a major market for all of the Group’s business. In Hong
Kong, the only business is publishing and multi-media product
trading.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments,
segment revenue is based on the geographical location of
customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based
on the geographical location of the assets.

AEBZEBEMERSH BXER
MELBERFEEER -HE A AAR
SEMEXRBcEIEMS MASERE
FREAAKEHMEZHBERERR
75 o

iR D BR2NNERE 2 BEKE IR
BEEPHHMEUES » MOBEER
BEARXAKBEEZ WIBMLES D -

Mainland China Hong Kong Consolidated
FE R o =e

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

—EENF —ZTLF —EENE —ZTLF —EENE —TTLF

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000

BEFT BEFT BT BEFTT EEF T BEFT
Revenue from RENREFZ

external customers Wiz 19,133 32,050 31,553 - 50,686 32,050
Carrying amount of HREEREAE

segment assets 19,535 26,548 46,657 27,453 66,192 54,001

Capital expenditure incured  FRELZ
during the year BERHEX 232 70 186 18 418 88
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14.

68

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. NE-BERRE
The Group rE
Office
Plant furniture
Leasehold and and Motor
improvements machinery fixtures vehicles Total
e WMAZE
MERE BRERKE REREE RE wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T  BEFIT BT KT  BEFIT
Cost 2N
At 1 April 2006 ZEERXR
MmAE—H 5,749 20,832 2,992 1,406 30,979
Exchange adjustments PE 3 532 - 246 - - 246
Additions = - 70 18 - 88
Disposals & - (989) (190) (246) (1,425)
At 31 March 2007 MR-ZZETELF
and 1 April 2007 =E A==
T LF
mAE—H 5,749 20,159 2,820 1,160 29,888
Exchange adjustments PE 3 32 - 355 - - 355
Additions NE 21 263 134 = 418
Disposals & (5,749) (16,856) (2,764) - (25,369)
At 31 March 2008 R=ZZNF
=A=+-—H 21 3,921 190 1,160 5,292
Aggregate amortisation AERITE:
and depreciation:
At 1 April 2006 RZZTERF
mA—H 3,333 6,530 2,280 477 12,620
Exchange adjustments PE A - 113 - - 113
Charge for the year FEMR 2,230 3,020 151 182 5,583
Written back on disposals {1 & # @l - (683) (164) (179) (1,026)
At 31 March 2007 R-EZLF
and 1 April 2007 =—A=+—H
—EELF
MmA—H 5,663 8,980 2,267 480 17,290
Exchange adjustments PE 5, 58 & - 207 - - 207
Charge for the year FEMRR 188 1,734 98 224 2,244
Written back on disposals i & # [0 (5,749) (8,384) (2,328) 1) (16,462)
At 31 March 2008 R=-BENF
=A=+—8 2 2,537 37 703 3,279
Net book value RERE
At 31 March 2008 R=EZBBNF
=A=+—8 19 1,384 153 457 2,013
At 31 March 2007 R-EZLF
—A=+—H 186 11,179 553 680 12,598

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &
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14.

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. YE-BERRE (&)

Notes: Bt &t -

(a) Property, plant and equipment held under a finance lease (a) RERENEREZYE - BERSE
(note 25) & (Htat25)
The Group leases a motor vehicle under a finance lease expiring AEBBRER-_ZETNFRABR
in May 2009. At the end of the lease term the Group has the ZREHEREARE - NHEEHER
option to purchase the leased motor vehicle at a price deemed B AEBEEEEZEEEREER
to be a bargain purchase option. The lease does not include ZERE-HETELEIATS-

contingent rentals.

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of motor vehicle REER AEEREMERERS
held under a finance lease of the Group was HK$457,000 (2007: ZARBEREFEAE 457,000
HK$680,000). (ZZEZ+F:8%680,0007T) °

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. BEFREE

The Group KE
Copyright of book titles
EB 2
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Cost: KA
At 1 April and 31 March RUA—BE=R=+—H 841 841
Accumulated impairment losses: R RESSE:
At 1 April RUA—H - -
Impairment loss BEEE 841 =
At 31 March REF=—FH 841 -
Carrying amount: BREIE:
At 31 March R=A=+—8 - 841
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15.

16.

70

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

@)

The copyright represents a set of exclusive rights for the
Group to reproduce 115 educational book titles. The
copyright of book titles is amortised on a straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life from the date when it is
available for use.

In 2007, the copyright was not available for use as the
Group was applying to the PRC government for approval
in publishing the books in the PRC. The approval was
expected to be granted to the Group before March 2008.
The directors were of the opinion that the recoverable
amount of the copyright of book titles as at the balance
sheet date was higher than their carrying value and no
impairment loss was considered necessary. The valuation
of the copyright of book titles was performed by RHL
Appraisal Ltd., an independent valuer on an open market
basis in 2007.

In 2008, the approval has not been granted by the PRC
government and the directors concluded that it is
appropriate to provide for a full impairment loss.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15.

16.

BREE (&)

(a)

REEANEBBEGAHESE
B ZBHEERN-E B R H A H
R E BRAR ARG A&
P& BRI 5K -

R-ZZELF AEEDERT
BT R B HEE R R B R
ER B BREDARA HER-
AEERAENR _ZZNF=H

RIESHE-EZRARBRER
H&%E%QCEZTH&@ KRB
HEEE RBARER ZRE
RIHREREE & B REZGE
H 8 37 (B Ak M 1T RHE R R A
BRARR-_ZFZELFNAFRME
BE-

RZZFZNFE PRBFDRE
HHLE - T EER A EED IR
BEE-

RMBARAZRE

The Company

¥ NN
2008 2007
—EEN\F 2
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEETF T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost IE BT AR AR 59,499 59,499
Less: Impairment losses B R EE R 59,499 52,505
- 6,994

In view of the accumulated losses and poor operating
performance of subsidiaries, the directors concluded that
it is appropriate to make full impairment losses of
HK$59,499,000 (2007: HK$52,505,000) for the investment
costs in these subsidiaries.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

BB ARFERSEERE
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

The following are details of the company’s subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary shares

unless otherwise stated.

16. RMIBRAAZRE (&)

(b)

TREEZTEFE

AEBEXE

BEFABZHBRARFE K
ABHRAIN FAFROERNE S

Epila

Proportion of ownership interest

WL
Place of Particular
incorporation of issued Group’s
and and paid-up effective Held by the Held by Principal
Name of company operation capital interest Company subsidiary activity
BRTR
B B BRe MAEE MAAR  HNELH
NERER mEmE EXEHR EREE el BE TE#EER
Shanghai New Culture TV PRC Registered 60% = 60%  Production of
And Radio Making i capital television
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai RMB5,000,000 programmes
New Culture”) (note) HMREX and sales of
EEH X EEER S A R #5,000,0007T multi-media
BRAA ([ LE#FE]) products
(fizt) BB BIE
NHEZ K
BEMm
Sun Television Group Limited BVI 10,000 shares of 100% 99% 1%  Investment
RBELHES US$1 each holding
10,0008% REER
BREE
1%L 2 R D
Tidetime Future Optical Media ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% = 100%  Multi-media
Technology Limited 0 HK$1 each product
REENHEEERLA 10,0008 trading
BREE BEESHE
18T 2 Bk fn Em
Treasurepoint Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100% - Investment
KBELHES US$1 each holding
1REREE REZR
1ETZ KRG
STR Media Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% - 100% Investment
B HK$1 each holding
10,0008 REEK
REE
1872 k1R

Annual Report 2008 % 71



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i £ —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

16.

17.

72

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RHMBARAZERE (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
EEELH
Place of Particular
incorporation of issued Group’s
and and paid-up effective Held by the Held by Principal
Name of company operation capital interest Company subsidiary activity
BRIR
MR LR BRz HAKE HAAR HHEAHE
DRER Fg gL BEXEHR EREE 58 BE TEEK
Sun Arts Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of 100% 50% 50%  Provision of
6 HK$1 each corporate
28R services
BREE RED AR
1T 2R KD
China Giant Investments BVI 1 share of 100% 100% - Share
Limited RERLES US$1 each investment
FHEREERAT 18R BHEE
REE
1ZT 2R K
note: B &% -

Shanghai New Culture is registered under the laws of the PRC
as a sino-foreign equity joint venture on 24 November 1998 to
be operated for 20 years up to 23 November 2018.

EEHFER—ANANE+T—A-+THAR
BERBAEEMATIIEERE AIEX -
TEEF-NF+—HA=t+=B1L-

GOODWILL 17. BE
The Group
RE
2008 2007
—EENF —EETLF
HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT ABETT
Cost: A
At 1 April »EA—H 49,304 57,989
Disposals — trading of cultural related & — R BNz Xt
multi-media products in Mainland China AL EREERESE - (8,685)
At 31 March R=EF =r—FH 49,304 49,304
Accumulated impairment losses: R RESSE:
At 1 April R®EA—H 46,120 44,056
Impairment loss BB 18 3,184 10,749
Write back on disposals — trading of HER B — R B A2
cultural related multi-media products LS EEBEREE
in Mainland China - (8,685)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 49,304 46,120
Carrying amount: BREE:
At 31 March R=A=+—8H - 3,184

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &
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17.

GOODWILL (Continued) 17.

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified
according to business segment and country of operation as
follows:

2008
—BE0\F

BE (&)
a

EHEZRESE4AEURENR

BERBEXGOBNEERRIEER
SEzERMNRSELEMMT:

2007
—EELF

Broad-
casting and
content  Trading of
production multi-media Publication
in Mainland  products in in Mainland
China Hong Kong China
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) Total
ERE R EEEN
HEER 2R HERERL
R EREE #Y H AR
(Ktit() (Kt &t b)) (Bt aF(c) st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
BET T BT BETF T BET T

Broad-
casting and
content Trading of
production  multi-media Publication
in Mainland ~ productsin in Mainland
China Hong Kong China
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) Total
EHE R EE#
HEER HZEE EFEAL
R EREE 9 AR
(Ktzt() (Kiztn)) (K i) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BETT BETT BETFT

Cost KA 13,749 32,371 3,184 49,304 13,749 32,371 3,184 49,304
Accumulated ZEtREEE

impairment loss (13,749) (32,371) (3,184) (49,304) (13,749) (32,371) = (46,120)
Carrying amount EEE - - - - = = 3,184 3,184

(a) Broadcasting and content production in Mainland
China (Cost: HK$13,749,000; Impairment:
HK$13,749,000)

Due to the poor performance of the cash-generating unit
in 2005 the directors concluded that the cash-generating
unit was no longer able to generate sufficient cash flows
to the Group and a full impairment of HK$13,749,000
was therefore recognised in that year.

(a) EREREERE (KK BY
13,749,000 7z ; 5 1B : /B %
13,749,000 T )

HRR - EERFREEELEEN
RBRREHB BEERAZBEEELE
BB TEANEEEERHIE
eREB EMRZERNEREH
SRLE 76 #513,749,0007T °
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17.

74

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill (Continued)

(b) Trading of multi-media products in Hong Kong
(Cost: HK$32,371,000; Impairment: HK$32,371,000)

Due to the changes in technology and deteriorating market
conditions resulting in poor performance in this cash-
generating unit, the directors assessed the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit and concluded it was
appropriate to impair the carrying amount of the goodwill
by HK$21,622,000 and HK$10,749,000 in 2006 and 2007
respectively.

(c) Publication in Mainland China (Cost: HK$3,184,000;
Impairment: HK$3,184,000)

In 2007, the directors assessed the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit and concluded that it was
appropriate not to provide for impairment. The directors
had not determined whether the Group would allocate
resources to fund and launch the business development
of the cash-generating unit in accordance with the Group’s
expansion plans, the recoverable amount was therefore
determined with reference to its fair value less costs to
sell based on valuation assessed by an independent
professional valuer. The valuation was performed by RHL
Appraisal Ltd., an independent valuer, on an open market
basis in 2007.

In 2008, the directors assessed the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit and concluded that it is
appropriate to make an impairment of HK$3,184,000 due
to adverse changes in the publication and market
conditions during the year.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

17.

e (&)

BEeHEZRSELAEMRENR

(%)

(b)

(c)

EEBHWZEEEREE (K
ZK: 8 1%32,371,0007T ; B 1E :
& 132 371,000T)

HAREMESE R mREE S
WERESELBMNRERE &
EEFHNERSELBN 2
WEHKE SRR _EENER
L FREBEBEEZERE
BB ¥ 21,622,0007T & 78 #
10,749,0007T °

TE B B Pt B9 HE AR (R K - 7
3,184,000t : 5 {8 : /B ¥
3,184,000t )

R-ZBTLF EFTHACE
ARG @ RIE BREBA
EHRERE -EFLRRER
SRR O RERABRBEAREH
R EERFRZREE
B2 XM ER A E 5K
BT32E XV ERHEEKARIE
BYEXMAEM GEEE G
1B BB 37 (4 B R oK F 1T T E R
BRARR -_ZEZLFRAFAT
BET

RZZENF EEHRESELE
BALZ AT Y E & BRI FT AL I
REBRRERETERFERLR
T &) /E B 3,184,000
TLZ A
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18.  INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—FREE LT ZER
The Group
rE
2008 2007
—EENF —EEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Share of net assets DIEBEEFE - =
Note: Investment in Sun Satellite Television Company Limited was Max: BREEERERARZIKEER
disposed of during the year. FALE-
(@) In 2007, the particulars of the associate which was (a) R-BBELEZXRBFLHd

an unlisted corporate entity were as follows:

XERCBELARAFROT:

Proportion of
ownership interest

BEELH
Form of Place of Particulars of Group’s
business incorporation issued and effective Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of associate structure and operation paid up capital interest Company subsidiary activity
RBERB AR R BRAR HEKE @HEAE AKBAR
BENRER ZER REwmE HREXZER EBERESR k] BE TEEHR
Sun Satellite Television Incorporated Hong Kong 100 30% = 30%  Inactive
Company Limited 3115 Ava o ordinary shares TmeEs
(“Sun Satellite”) of HK$1 each
GHREEER 1008
BRRAA FR (&
(MR GEE]) BT
2 EER

(b) Summary of financial information on Sun Satellite

(b) BABEZHBEMBAMM

is as follows: T:

2008 2007

=EE V- 2T

HK$’000 HK$000

BT T BT

Assets BE - 3
Liabilities Bf&E - (3,197)
Equity xS - (3,197)

Revenues & - =
Loss for the year NFEEEE - (921)
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19.

76

OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 19. HMERBUKEEE
The Group The Company
RE b /N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE =TT tLF ZBENF ZITTtHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T EBEF T BT T
Available-for-sale AHEEZ
equity securities 1% 5
— Unlisted investments outside — A% 7 LA YMih &
Hong Kong (note (a)) ELEMIRE
(Kiaz(a) - 1 - =
— Listed outside Hong Kong  — & A S &
(note (b)) £ (K aEb) - 1 - 1
— Listed in Hong Kong —REAL™
(note (c)) (H13E(c) 1,002 = - =
Available-for-sale debt AHHEEZ
securities BRES
— Unlisted —JEm - 1 - =
1,092 S - 1
Market value of listed R REZ
equity securities miE 1,092 2,086 - 334
Notes: B &% -
(@) In 2007, unlisted investments in securities were classified as (a) RIZEZLF ARIELETESFEE

available-for-sale securities and carried at cost less impairment,
if any, as () they do not have a quoted market price in an active
market to determine their fair value, or (i) the range of reasonable
fair value estimates of investments is significant and the
probabilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed.

(o) In 2007, available-for-sale equity securities listed outside Hong
Kong included the Group’s 15.1% and the Company’s 2.4%
equity interest in Asia Premium Television Group, Inc. (‘ATVG”), a
company incorporated in the State of Nevada of the United
States of America and its shares registered with Over-The-Counter
Bulletin Board (the “OTCBB”) in the United States of America. In
view of the objective evidence that (i) as at the balance sheet
date ATVG incurred net current liabilities and net liabilities which
indicated ATVG was in financial difficulty and ATVG might result
in bankruptcy, and (i) the ATVG's shares were thinly traded and
the Group and the Company held a large number of ATVG’s
shares, the directors considered that the quoted market price of
ATVG on the OTCBB was not a reliable indicator of its fair value
and conclude that the investments in ATVG would not have real
value to the Group and the Company and thus it was appropriate
to carry the investments at nominal value of HK$1,000 after an
impairment of approximately HK$38,563,000 by the Group and
approximately HK$2,185,000 by the Company as the fair value
of the investments as at 31 March 2007. An impairment of
approximately HK$38,563,000 by the Group and approximately
HK$2,185,000 by the Company on the investments were firstly
recognised in 2004 and 2005 respectively. In 2008, all these
securities were disposed of.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

HrEEZRMSHRETHRFELTE
B () ERENE B AT E R
HEEA BEXSETGHSEMG
Rl REE B3E LB R IRE D A
Al HEE 5 R A FIBR IR E (40
B) 5k

RIZESLF FEUIIME LT 2
AHEEERNELSREASEIEA
15.1 %M1 I N R 5] 5 A 2.4% A%
Z Asia Premium Television Group,
Inc. ([ATVG] ) *Z A RIREFRE
BEEEZEM M mERGR
EFERABHESINBERR S REEH
([OTCBBI ) s:fffte FHFN () ATVGHA &
BRERDABFE MABFER
TNATVGH 35 B Br (R 8 - AT Re Rl B2 |
(i) ATVGHR 7 2 %5838 M AN K E &
RRABHBERKEATVGZ LR %
W EERAATVGR OTCBBH T 5 )
BWIIEHEQNFEZIEEZE MEE
RATVGH AL B R AQR W EEE
BE WZSEREABRRASERARA
AMKEE S GRENSE
38,563,0007T & #7% #2,185,0007T
BREEBE1 000TEAR-EZ
+tE=A=+—BHEREAFE
RoAEBEARQRNEBERERE
2 Bl 497 % 38,563,000 & 4 7 #
2,185,000 D RIR T WFE R =
SERFHENER R_ZT)\F-
FEZSEEHFHE LS
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19.

20.

OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 19. HtFRBUKEE (&)

(© Available-for-sale equity securities listed in Hong Kong include (c) REBEMZAHEERDESE
the Group’s 4.4% (2007: Nil) equity interest in China Star BAEEFFI4%(ZF Zﬁ’tfﬁ
Entertainment Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong ﬁa\i\) RiEZHAREEEBAR DA
and its shares registered in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong ANAIREBTEMKZ MEERHONE
Limited. BEE XS MBR QA G

BROADCASTING PROGRAMMES 20. EEHA

The Group
rE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BT

Carrying amount at 1 April RIEA—RAZERAE 20,927 34,569

Exchange adjustments b H A 1,963 1,877

Additions nE 972 3,388

Amortisation 5 (7,994) (18,907)

Carrying amount at 31 March —A=+—HZEHE 15,868 20,927

@)

The broadcasting programmes are expensed to income
statement under cost of sales. The broadcasting
programmes are derecognised on (i) disposal, or (i) when
no future economic benefits are expected from their use
or disposal.

As at the balance sheet date, the gross carrying amount
and accumulated amortisation of the broadcasting
programmes were HK$36,266,000 (2007:
HK$36,752,000) and HK$20,398,000 (2007:
HK$15,825,000) respectively.

(@) EEEREERAREERT
i o BB ED B 5O () i B B 3 (i) TR
HEARHEEENE TS HE
BRENDE SFRER-

4 At
=

i
-
2 BR

i EEiE 2EREAE
&i%iuﬂéﬂﬁfﬁ%uz%;‘%ﬁ%
36,266,0007T (Z TG B
36,752,000t ) Kk # &
20,398,0007T (=T & Bk
15,825,0007T) °
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21.

78

TRADING SECURITIES

21. HHERE

The Group and the Company

AEEREAQT
2008 2007
—EENE —EEEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYEFTT B TFT
Trading securities (at market value) HHEH (BRTHE)
Listed equity securities LETRAE S
- outside Hong Kong — BB AIMNBE 338 6,207
338 6,207

At 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of interest in the following
company represents 0.5% (2007: 11.4%) and 0.6% (2007: 26.7%)
of the Group’s and the Company’s total assets respectively:

Particulars of issued

R-EBEZNF=ZA=
ZHEDEAES I BARERRARR]
BEBEZ05% (ZEZELF:11.4%)

F0.6%(ZZFERNF:26.7%) °

Proportion of

shares held by ownership interest
Place of the Group and held by the Group
Name of company incorporation the Company and the Company Principal activity
AEERAKDT
REZERT AEEREDALZ
AR EB i B A i B ROER BEELSH TEXK
2008 2007
“BEEN\F —TTLF
NextMart Inc. State of Minnesota, 736,894 0.90% 1.7% Outsourced brand

United States of

America
EFRER

B e gz M

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

(2007:1,624,131)
common shares of
US$0.01 each

SREBEOIET
Z.736,894/%
(Z2ZtF:
1,624,131f%)
%Rk

management and

production center

for apparel brands
HNHIER B i 8

) e B K

EERD

+—HB T3RF
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22,  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, EZRHMERKER
The Group The Company
rE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF ZEBENF —ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BEFIT
Amounts due from NS B
subsidiaries (note (a)) (Kiit@) - - 52,844 7,875
Amount due from FEU — I REE A A
a related company (hote (b)) KB (M Eb)) - 1,014 - =
Trade receivables (note (c)) H 5 AR
(Bt7E(c) 58 3,861 - =
Prepayments and deposits ENFEBERES 14,604 1,013 138 112
Other receivables (note (d)) Ho4th e I BR 3k
(K7 a£(@)) 25 1,500 2 1,500
14,687 7,388 52,984 9,487
(a Amounts due from subsidiaries (a) EWKMEARRE
The Company
AT
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR B 8 A Bl FRIB 164,402 241,545
Less: Impairment loss SR RE A 111,558 233,670
52,844 7,875

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

JE WK B8~ R IR T IR 2
BREREERERH-
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22,

80

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

22, EFREMEWERR (&)

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Continued) (a) EWKHBARRE (&)
In view of the subsidiaries, which sustained losses and RN ZEMB AT EREER
had poor operating performance, not financially capable FEERBRE RZEHRBA
of repaying to the Company, the directors concluded that REMR EREERTFAAR
it is appropriate to make an impairment loss on f EELEREZEWNB AT
HK$111,558,000 (2007: HK$233,670,000), after Z BN MBRR - BReR
considering the profitability, financial positions, cash flows 2 AXRAF UEETEERRK
and future prospects of these subsidiaries, and certain B REEZESEWRKE QAR
key assumptions. I8 1 & 7 #111,558,0007T (=
=T+ F: & ¥ 233,670,0007T)
ZREERE-
Movements of impairment loss on amounts due from JE U B B A B FRIE 2 R (B 5 18 B
subsidiaries are analysed as follows: O
The Company
¥ NN
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1 April R A—H 233,670 253,341
Charge for the year NEE MR 1,961 2,272
Write-offs i 58 (124,073) (21,943)
At 31 March R=A=+—8 111,558 233,670
Amount due from a related company (b) EWBREATRE

The amount due from E/E¥T (L EHIEE (£B) 5
AR ([FX{bEE |)is unsecured, interest-free and
has no fixed terms of repayment. ¥ X {t 2 is the
holding company of a minority shareholder of Shanghai
New Culture, a subsidiary of the Company (hote 76).

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

FEWR EEFHXEEEERE (&
E) BRAR ([#FXEEHE])
ZHIEAEER RENERT
BB BEE A EEBFX
tEBEERBEEFGR AR (KA
AIMTB AR LEBRE IR
7 (MfaE16) -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(c)

Trade receivables

An ageing analysis of trade debtors net of impairment
loss on bad and doubtful debts of HK$3,572,000 (2007:
HK$2,235,000) is as follows:

22.

BEZRHMBERERR (4)

(c)

B % BWERR

Bk A 3,572,000 (Z T
+ B #2 235,0007T) RIEFER
BEEE 2 E 5 ERETERE D
M :

The Group
AEE

2008 2007

—EENE —EELF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 1 month —fEAA - =
More than 1 month but ZK—EAEREA A

within 2 months - -
More than 2 months but ZRMEABE=EARA

within 3 months - -
More than 3 months but ZR=AAEEARAN

within 6 months 7 3,173

Over 6 months but ZRANEAE+=ZEAR
within 12 months 51 688
58 3,861

The Group allows a credit period normally ranging from
15 days to 180 days to its trade customers. The Group
may, on a case by case basis and after evaluation of the
business relationship and creditworthiness, extend the
credit period upon customers’ request.

As at 31 March 2008, trade receivables of approximately
HK$3,572,000 (2007: HK$2,235,000) were determined
to have been impaired and full provision had been made,
in light of the fact that these trade receivables were long
overdue for over one year as at the balance sheet date
without any settlement during that year and remained
outstanding, and/or were due from debtors with financial
difficulties.

AEE—RETESHEFIGRE
180RZEE# A& E 1R E
BN ERZEEFNERH
FEREEFRE AEEPEXR
mEREER-

R-ZBEENF=A=+—08"48
R&)B 3,572,000 (ZEZT+
B2 2350007T) 2 AEE
ZSRWERNREERAE R
REBB—F EFRNITEEME
FoBMARBERHKEFH
BRENEBS A WFTAEER
B WEFLE2EEE-
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22, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22, EZRHEMEWERNR (&)

(c)  Trade receivables (Continued) (c) EZEWERRE)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are EREARECESEKER
considered to be impaired is as follows: BRI T
The Group
rE

2008 2007
—EENF —EEEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT B TFT
Less than 6 months past due mERE A R - =
6 months to 1 year past due BMEINBEAE—F - =
1 year to 3 years past due BME—FE=F 3,572 2,235
3,672 2,235

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not TERBBEZESHEWERZ

considered to be impaired is as follow: RO T
The Group
rE

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 6 months past due BHANEAR 7 3,173
6 months to 1 year past due BMEINEAZE—F 51 6388
58 3,861

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

B 8 3B R (B 2 e M AR 508 &
HAKEARFCHZ @B
EF-REAELR ~AEEES
AR BN BARZFTERIED
HEBRE LTHAREEERY
AREREE MaFERITDARER
AP BB o AN £R [ 3 4 B R4
FEBKFAEMERRREME
SRt
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Movements of impairment loss are analysed as follows:

22.

EEREMBRER (&)

(c)

BESRWRR (&)

MEBBZEESHOMWT:

The Group
rE
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 April RYA—H 2,235 703
Exchange adjustments PE 5 g & 209 (7)
Charge for the year RERE R 1,128 1,549
At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,572 2,235
Other receivables (d HttEEWKIE
The Group
rE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Gross receivables JE W AR R AR B 25 1,500

As at 31 March 2007, other receivables of HK$1,500,000
represented the amount due from Mr. Kenneth Ma Hon
Wah. Further details are set out in note 34(b).

R-ZEBEEL+F=RA=+—H H
b, & U 3Kk 78 7 5 1,500,0007T 15
JE U 55 R EE S AR Y R IE o SE IS B

M EE34(b) °

Movements of impairment loss are analysed as follows: WEBEE BB OTAT:
The Group
E

2008 2007

—EENE —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At 1 April KU A—H - 3,333
Reversal for the year REZER - (3,333)
At 31 March R=A=+—H - =
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. EZRHMEWKER (&)
(d)  Other receivables (Continued) (d) HfbpEkwRE (&)
In 2007, the directors concluded that it is appropriate to RIEZLF HRAEEHEAM
make a reversal of impairment loss of approximately EWRIER BE 20U E - E
HK$3,333,000 on other receivables of the Group as the £ R A FEHE D 4775 13,333,000
amounts were considered to be fully recovered. TLZ B RBE.
() Al of the trade and other receivables are expected to be (e) FEEZREMEWIRFKIEAT
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. R—FAWRENERERL
23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. REeRERARELEH
The Group The Company
RE AAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZZTTtLF ZEENFE ZZTTLH
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EBET T BT T

EBETT BT T

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERS 6,970 2,853 646 547
Short term deposits with bank 5B HA R 1T 1E X 25,224 = - -
Cash and cash equivalents REEBERAN
in the balance sheet He kER

ReIEE 32,194 2,853 646 547
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.475% RHRITERZCERFEF0.475% (=
(2007: Nil), the deposits have an average maturity of 7 days, due EELF | REARZIELHEEHAE A

on 1 April 2008. TR RZZEZNGFHA—ABHH-

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 EBEZRHMENSER
The Group The Company
rE b /N

2008 2007 2008 2007
—BENE "ZTTLF ZBENFG —TTLHF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BETT

BT T BT T

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS BT B A B3 TE

(note (a)) (Ki3t(@)) - = 4,212 29,450
Amount due to a minority FEAT DR R FRIA
shareholder (note(b)) (K1aEm)) 914 = - =
Amounts due to directors JERNEEFIA
(note (c)) (K13E(c) - 1,500 - 1,500
Amount due to a related FEN —ERERT]
company (note (d)) KIB (K i) 12,012 21,467 - =
Trade payables (note (g)) Z SRR
(KiaEE) 602 2,148 - =
Accruals and other payables EErER R
H fth FE T BR 3K 28,852 28,164 7,524 7,722
42,380 53,279 11,736 38,672

84  Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={=k3 3¢ (£H) AR A 7
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24,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Amounts due to subsidiaries

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Amount due to a minority shareholder

The amount due to E)EF XL EEBR AT (T X{LESE)
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.
XL B4 is a minority shareholder of Shanghai New Culture
(see note 16(b)).

Amounts due to directors

From September 2006 to December 2006, Mr. Chen and Ms.
Ma advanced to the Company HK$1,200,000 and HK$300,000
respectively of which HK$560,000 and HK$140,000 were repaid
to Mr. Chen and Ms. Ma respectively in February 2007. The
amounts due to directors were unsecured, interest-free and had
no fixed terms of repayment. The amounts were repaid in full by
the Company in July 2007 .

In addition, on 1 January 2007, the Company, Mr. Chen and
Ms. Ma entered into an agreement whereby Mr. Chen and Ms.
Ma agreed to advance to the Company at an aggregate amount
of HK$700,000 on revolving basis. From January 2007 to March
2007, Mr. Chen and Ms. Ma advanced to the Company
HK$560,000 and HK$140,000 respectively. The amounts due
to directors were unsecured, interest-free and repayable after six
months from the date of drawdown. The amounts were repaid in
full by the Company in July 2007.

Amount due to a related company

The amount due to E/& 3 3XbEFERE (£E) BRAR ([F
XAL{E & |) is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment. 1 X {L{E £ is the holding company of a minority
shareholder of Shanghai New Culture, a subsidiary of the
Company (note 16).

24.

BEZRHMEMNKRR (4)

GEZ

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BE A3 I B 2 B SKR

FERTHT B A R FIRTEER R B8R

E&LBRRKE

et L AL ESEBRDE ([#
XLEE]) 2 RBARBER RER
BEEERB - HUEERLEH
Xtz L BRR (ZHEE16())

ENEERE

H-ZZANFALAZE-_ZTT X F+
A BAERELZEIHRIRAAATR
# % 78 % 1,200,0007T & B
300,0007T * iff & # 7 ¥ 560,0007T &
140,000 E D BIR T T LF
—RAEETRAEREL LT EMNE
EHEIVERE 28 M EETEE
HKHARNTER BT +FE+AE

BRESE-

N ARE REERFEZLETRZ
TE+E— BB Bt
BMEERBLZLTRBMARARFER
B A H£ET700,000 8 - EF
+tF&E—AE_ZTTL+F=A BRE4LE
EERLTZSRAAARBL B
560,0007T K 75 #140,0007T ° f& 15t &
BEHRBEHERE 28 WARIR
HEBRANEAEE - ZEXECHR
ZZLFLABRARAZEHEERE-

BN —-—MREQRKRE

e LB UEEERRE (KE) B
RO ([FEEE]) 2 FARE
HAR -2 2R E B &R ¥ Xk
BHERARDEIMER R LEH X
DPBBRRZER AT (HaE16) -
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 24, BEZRHMEMSER (&)
(e) Trade payables (e) ESEMSERX
An ageing analysis of trade payables as of the balance sheet REERESENERRZERD T
date is as follows: PO
The Group
A%
2008 2007
—EENE —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 1 month —@AR - 595
More than 1 month but within 2 months % — & A8/ & A K - 1
More than 2 months but within 3 months % 7 /& B 18 =18 A & - =
Over 3 months BiBE=1EA 602 1,552
602 2,148
(1] All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or () FREEB S REMEMNEREHAR
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on —FALZNHERBWASKIZEK
demand. EE-
25. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 25. @EERERIE
As 31 March 2008, the Group had obligation under a finance R-_ZEENEFE=ZA=+—H AEBE
lease repayable as follows: BEZBREHEAENT:
The Group
rE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum  the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BREHES REHES =EHEE ®EHEE
ZHE wE 2 RME kS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Within 1 year —F R 234 263 234 263
After 1 year but within 2 years —F & BMER 39 44 234 263
After 2 years but within 5 years MF& 1B R F R - - 39 44
39 44 273 307
273 307 507 570
Less: total future B AR R
interest expenses 7 4858 34 63
Present value of lease obligation i & & #£8 & 273 507
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26.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 11 June 2007 and 20 June 2007, the Company and two
independent third parties (the “Subscribers”) entered into a
subscription agreement and a supplemental agreement whereby
the Company agreed to issue convertible notes in an aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$25,354,000 to the
Subscribers at par. The convertible notes are unsecured, interest
bearing at 2% per annum and matured after five years from the
date of issue of the convertible notes.

The holders of the convertible notes have the conversion right as
attached to the convertible notes to convert any of the outstanding
principle amount of the convertible notes into the shares of the
Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.228 per share,
subject to adjustments, during the conversion period commencing
from the date of issue of convertible notes to the seven business
days immediately prior to the date of maturity of the convertible
notes.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible note. The
residual amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
option, is included in shareholders’ equity in convertible note
reserve.

26.

TE®EREE

EAf77JC¢/\)EH’ HEZ J:¢
(IR E%J\J).Jiu Nk &%ﬁz—ﬁﬁ%%
AARRAERNRBARMEBEZRITASE
A4 B 25,354,000 2 Al I E I -
RREESERT RFEFEK2EF
B WEMRERERTAHRET AT
1% 35

TW%S‘E?F%@/\%@TW‘Hﬁ%‘%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Rk AR (DA R R R %
TEHEERTREERI BB LA
LSER)RNSHBESKREK.228

T (HERE) B RBRERARED AR
EREBMABARRERMD -
BESZA IFTEEDA%ﬁZT—HﬁHQ

B2 5 F A E o S R R
Rz BE BN ATRRERR
BZBRES
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26.

88

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

26.

The convertible notes recognised in the balance sheet are

calculated as follows:

ARRREE (&)

REEBBERBERCATBRRERSEN
T

The Group and the Company

AEEREAQT
2008 2007
—EENE —EEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETF T B TFT
Fair value of convertible notes issued RZZEZLF+ A+ A
on 16 July, 2007 B2 BmRER L AFE 25,354 =
Equity component (hote 27) (HiaF27) (6,074) =
Liability component on initial recognition RZZTZLFLA+H
at 16 July, 2007 NRERE 2 BEED 19,280 -
Interest expense (note 7(a)) MBRAX (Hit7@) 1,114 =
Interest paid B F A (366) =
Liability component at 31 March 2008 RZBEEZNEFE=ZA=1+—HZ
BEHS 20,028 -

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible notes at
31 March 2008 amounted to HK$20,028,000. The fair value is
calculated using cash flows discounted at a rate based on the

borrowings rate of 8% per annum.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

RZEBEEN\F=ZA=+—H 7JBEKRZE
BEaEID 2 AFEAEBE20,028,000
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 21 ER R #E
(a) The Group (a) &
Share Convertible Fair
Share Share Contributed Exchange Capital option note value Accumulated Minority Total
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
ERE TRk AYE DY
BA RHOEE BHRH ELRE BELHE RE FERE i RiER B REER RALE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
BEFT RBEFrT EETT BEFr A¥Fr BETr B¥Fr EETr BETn A¥Fr BETr BT
At1Api 2006 RZTENE
mA—-A 5,560 13,710 84,798 197 3,490 43 - - (40,493) 67,305 - 67,305
Exchange BEBN
diferences HELF
ontransiationof ~ BIHHE 2
financial N EH
statements of
overseas
Subsidiaries - - - (114) - - - - - (114) - (114)
Reserve released  (HENBAF
upondisposal A RK
of subsidiaries - - - 21 - - - - - 27 - 27
Equiy-setiied ~ MRAZE
share-based anbiZ
transactions 25 - - - - - 14 - - = 14 - 14
Share options R RE
lapsed - - - - - (28) - - 28 - - -
Loss for the year  AFEE#E - - - - - - - - 7017)  (67,017) - (67.017)
At 31 March 2007 R=ZE+%F
and =
1Api2007  =t-8F
3 3
mA—AH 5,560 13,710 84,798 110 3,490 29 - - (107,482 215 - 215
Exchange BE
differences HEBLR
ontranslationof B HE 2
financial ERES
statements of
overseas
subsidiaries - - - (486) - - - - - (486) - (486)
Equity-setiied ~ MRAZE
share-based Ripf
transactions 5 - - - - - 7 - - - 7 - 7
Share options R RE
lapsed - - - - - (29) - - 29 - - -
Recognionof BB ARK
equity component i 2 B3
of convertible #n
notes - - - - - - 6,074 - - 6,074 - 6,074
Fair value mgneE
changes on HBAEZ
avalable-forsale  ATELE
financial assets - - - - - - - (1,677) - (1,677) - (1,577)
Loss for the year AFEE#R - - - - - - - - (722) (722) - (722)
At 31 March 2008 R=ZEN\E
=f
Er=[ 5,560 13,710 84,798 (376) 3,490 7 6,074 (1,577)  (108,175) 3,511 - 3,511
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 21.ER Kl (&)
(b) The Company (b) &2 7]
Share Convertible
Share Share Contributed option note Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses equity
R CE:L

Bx  B#aE EARG i RERKE RIER RAAE
HK8000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKB000  HKE000  HK$'000
EETT  EBTT  EETT  ARTn EETT AETT EETR

At 1 April 2006 RIBERE
A A—H 5,560 13,710 84,798 43 - (39,041) 65,070
Share options lapsed KB E - - = (28) = 28 =
Equity-settled AR AN 4 ,@TJ}X )
share-based transactions AR = = = 14 = = 14
Loss for the year M&“Eﬁ% - - - - - (80,520) (80,520)
At 31 March 2007 and RZEE+F
1 April 2007 = H + =t
ZETLF
E A—H 5,560 13,710 84,798 29 - (119,533) (15,436)
Share options lapsed KR E - - - (29) - 29 -
Equity-settled MR A FTHX f
share-based transactions AR - = = 7 = = 7
Recognition of equity R —Wﬁx 3
component of ZIRERH
convertible notes = = = = 6,074 = 6,074
Profit for the year KEE R - - - - - 31,559 31,559
At 31 March 2008 R-ZBENF
ZA=+-H 5,560 13,710 84,798 7 6,074 (87,945) 22,204
(c) Share capital (c) B
Authorised and issued share capital FEEEBITRA
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each
EREEBY0MITHEER
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE MIE
’000 HK$'000
F A BT T
Authorised: EERRA:
At 1 April 2008, —EEXFMA—8-
31 March 2007 —EE+F=A=+—8BK
and 31 March 2008 —EENF=A=+—H 66,000,000 660,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 April 2006, RZEZXRFMNA—B
31 March 2007 and “EELF=A=+—H8K
31 March 2008 “EENF=ZA=+—H 556,037 5,560
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27.  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Share capital (Continued)
Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to revenue
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves
i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

ii)) Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the result of capital
reorganisation implemented in December 2003 and
September 2005. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, the contributed surplus account of
the Company is available for distribution. However,
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make distributions out of contributed surplus if:

- it is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy note 3(t).

27. BEXRKREE (&)

(c)

(d)

R (&)
HEECRITRA (&)

BB A AR REUWET R 3%
MR YA EEARBK
RAEELRE-BENE—FER
ER-BERARREBREE A
BE BB ERRER -

HEZHEERRAR
i) BRGBE

FRABRMDEERTERE
—AN\—FRAEFEL01F
PR ©

ii) EHREG

BERBHRE _TT=F
TZARZZEZRAFNA
MEARBH - RIFEBRE
—hWN\—FREE AR
AN BRG] RS-
AT - R E T HE R
DRI A B R SOK#EARE
FEEHBREDLIKE:

- RNEBZHAEDH
Ry A 3K A BE MDA
BEBE X

—  SREEHTER
BEERERE B
B 17 R B MR 19 i
LETOrE R

i) EZFEE
ERFEERREGINE
B BREZFEELZ

RHoME H IR AT
REBIMIEEE -
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27.

92

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
iv) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisaton in November 1992 and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof.

v) Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the
Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based
payments in note 3(p)(ii).

vi) Convertible note reserve

Convertible note reserve represents the difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible note and the fair value assigned to the
liability component that is recognised directly in
equity in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 3(m)(i).

vii) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents the cumulative
gain and loss on the fair value changes of available-
for-sale financial assets held at the balance sheet
date that is recognised directly in equity in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out
in note 3(g)(iv).

(e) Distributability of reserves
As at 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company,

including contributed surplus and accumulated losses, was
nil (2007: Nil).

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

27.

BEXR#E (&)

(d)

(e)

HEZHERAER (&)
iv) BREFEE

BRAFEEE - NLALZ=F+
— A EEHEUREEH B
AR Z REEEAA
AIMERNEmEETTRGD
BREEMNERE

v) BREGEE

BRERBARTAD
Eﬂﬁﬂ@%k%iﬁi
HEFBEMATE 5
BU58 1% BR BT 7E 3(p) (i) AT &K
EEROEANRAEE
PR ER AR

vi) URREERE

AR E R EEETA

MR EIBAISRIRRRR R
TEEREHNHZAFE
Z R E R IR IR BT &
(MW%ZA%ﬁ%F
BRENERER-

vii) R FERE

AT EFEEEREERF
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NFEEEH 2 2T
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28.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

Employee share-based compensation benefits represent the fair
value of employee services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant options over the relevant vesting
periods, the total of which is based on the fair value of the
options over the relevant vesting periods and is recognised as
staff costs and related expenses (note 7(b)) with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve.

(a) Share options
i) Old Scheme

Prior to the New Scheme effective on 10 November
2002, the Company has a share option scheme
which was adopted on 10 November 1992
whereby the board of directors (“the Board”) is
authorised, at their discretion, to grant to eligible
employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options and
subscribe for the shares of the Company. The
terms and conditions of the grant are determined
by the Board at the time of grant. In any event, the
exercisable period of an option must not exceed a
period of ten years from the date of grant. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Options are
forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in special
general meeting of the Company held on 29
October 2002, the Company terminated the
operation of the Old Scheme that no further options
could thereafter be offered under the Old Scheme
but outstanding options granted under the Old
Scheme shall remain effective subject to the
relevant provisions of the Old Scheme and
approved and adopted the New Scheme. There
were no share options outstanding under the Old
Scheme at 31 March 2008 and 2007.

28.

URAEERDBEAXRS

AR ST 2 B B fERM IR ER
A R R B B R BUR IR G B R
Mg IR A FE- @ H AR RIE
PR 57 B B TR S AR B AU 2 I P ERT
B UBRAREIRANRBERE (A
iE7(b)) B AR R TR AR R o

(a) BRE

i)

EiE

R-ZEE_F+—HA+HHFE
EME RRBR— NN ZF+
— AT BEA-BBRETE
Exe([EFg)) BERERIE
AREEEERER (BREAE
BEAKEARMNES) REA
RABREARBARRBRND -
BROBRENERRIGTHES
BRI BB R R R TE - ME
BRT BRENTEY B
BREEBEF T F-BHEBK
BEETHAEARE -BRAQT
ERBEER - HEEBERARE
B EREERRK-

BERAATN-_ZET-_F+A=
THABETZREFIIASER
ZERRZE AQRIKRILES
2 HEBETUBREEFSRD
BRE HEREBEFEREN
RITEBRENDARABER (AR
EE BRGSO ER) Wit fE
MRmF e - BHE ST N\F
E—TEBL+E=HA=+—§ &
ETEIET I &M ARITHENBER
T o
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28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28.
(Continued)

LRAGEERGERARS (&)

(a) Share options (Continued)

(a) B HE (&)
i) Frard

RKRRAR-_ZBEZE_F+—HA+H
Ry —RERES EFgK
ERBEALAEERE (BEX
SEEMKERTNESR) RE
BRARARE AR BB REIA
RBARERMD KL BREN
FERRGEFRETERREBKR
PR - MEMIBER T - A2
BT B A AR R E B R
THE-BRBERESHTHAEA
RBE—BARA T BROEN-
HESRFAASE BRESRK
R Lo

ii) New Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 10 November 2002 whereby the
Board is authorised, at their discretion, to grant to
employees of the Group, including directors of any
Company in the Group, and eligible grantees to
take up options and subscribe for the shares of
the Company. The terms and conditions of the
grant are determined by the Board at the time of
grant. In any event, the exercisable period of an
option must not exceed a period of ten years
commencing on the date of grant. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Options are
forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

(b) FAERHAHDUROGEN K

(b) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed

) :_Eh N
during the years are as follows and all options are B9 B B AR AR RR R R A 20 T -
settled by physical delivery of shares:
Number of
options
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price granted
g
ZHBH HEAH TR T E BREZE
New Scheme
st &l
14 March, 2005 15 March 2005 to 1 July 2007 to HK$0.136 100,000
ZZETRE 30 June 2007 31 December 2007 B #0.1367T
=A+mA —ZERF=RAt+HAZ “ET+F+A-HE
—ET+FRA=TH —TE+F+-A=+—H
14 March, 2005 15 March 2005 to 1 July 2008 to HK$0.149 100,000
ZZETRE 30 June 2008 31 December 2008 B 150.1497T
=A+mA “ZERF=RAt+RAZ “ETN\FtA—HE
—EENFERA=TH —TENF+-A=+—H
200,000
28 March, 2008 28 March 2008 to 1 May 2008 to HK$0.161 1,124,000
—ZENE 30 April 2008 31 October 2009 A H0.1617T
=A=+NH “ZEENF=ZA-t+N\BE “TEN\FRA—HE
“EE\EWNA=1H “EENE+A=T—H
28 March, 2008 28 March 2008 to 1 November 2008 to HK$0.161 808,000
—ZENF 31 October 2008 31 October 2010 BE0.1617T
=A=-+NH “EENF=ZA-_F+N\BE —EENF+—HA—BZE
ZZZN\F+R=1—H —E-TFE+H=1T—H
1,932,000
2,132,000
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28.

(Continued)

(c)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28. LBRAEEROEAXRS (&)
The weighted average exercise prices and number (c) BERENEEITHEEREH
of share options are as follows: BwT:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of share average of share
exercise options exercise options
price granted price granted
niEEH [ZX:-L: T ERH
THEE BREXREA 1B EREZE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
B T B F17
Old Scheme EstEl
Outstanding at 1 Aprl ~ R A —BEAKRTTE NATEA - 5.5028 320
Forfeited 2 N/AT i A - 5.5028 (320)
Outstanding at 31 March R=A=+—H
H R AIT N/ATER - NAT#EB -
New Scheme et 8l
Outstanding at 1 April ~ HAP0 B — B AR 1T{E 0.1425 200 0.4533 300
Granted Esdan 0.161 1,932 NATEA -
Lapsed E 0.1425 (200) 1.075 (100)
Total outstanding R=A=+—H”
at 31 March R AR (€ AR 5T 0.161 1,932 0.1425 200
Exercisable at 31 March AfR=F=+—H
1fE 0.161 - 0.1425 =

The options outstanding at 31 March 2008 had exercise
price of HK$0.161 (2007: HK$0.136 to HK$0.149) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2 years

(2007: 1.25 years).

RZBEENE=A=+—BHR1TED
BRETHEEAEEI6IL (ZEE
+tF N FE¥0.1367T 2 B ¥ 0.149
JC) MmN R e LR A2F

—EELF 1265
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28.

96

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28. LRAZEROEAXRS (&)
(Continued)
(d)  Fair value of share options and assumptions d BEEZAFERRER
For the options granted under the New Scheme on 28 RR=ZZBEZNEF=ZA=F+NBR
March 2008, the fair value of services received in return B ERLNERENS 5
for share options granted is measured with reference to FIT 5 H ) B IR e i FR AR A0 IR 7S
the fair value of share options granted. The estimate of MAFEDLXEERLERED
the fair value of the services received is measured based NFEFTE FTERHEMREN
on the Binomial Pricing Model. Contractual life of the option ANFEGHEFHIREZBAEEER
and expectations of early exercise are incorporated into NeTE-BRES NP RTEHIRE
the model. The expected volatility is based on the historical EAETMMATEERN-TEH
volatility. Expected dividends are based on historical R T B A LR IR EE T o TR AR
dividends as well as expectation on future period A% B T E R B RS R FE AR K
performance. Changes in subjective input assumptions XEET FTHBEINEERE
could materially affect the fair value estimate. HEFAFEEEEATE-
Fair value of share options and assumptions BREATFEREK
Granted on 28 March 2008
R=ZZENF=ZA=+tNBEH
Note (i) Note (i)
B &) B a3 i)
Fair value at measurement date RETEHHHAFEE HK$0.046778 7T HK$0.06287% 7T
Share price & & HK$0.1678 7T HK$0.1678 7T
Exercise price 1EE HK$0.1617%& 7T HK$0.161/E 7T
Expected volatility TE DR 1R 95.02% 91.88%
Expected option life T8 B 8 A i F B 1.6 yearE 2.6 yearfF
Expected dividends TEEIR B % %
Risk-free interest rate 42 3 B A1) K 1.25% 1.55%
Suboptimal exercise factor RIEITEREZE 1.5 timesf& 1.5 timesf&
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28.

29.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(d) Fair value of share options and assumptions

28. LURBRAZEERGERNRS (&)

d BREZAFERER (&)

(Continued)
Notes: B &t
i) Exercisable period from 1 May 2008 to 31 October 2009 (i) TEBER-_ZZNFRA—
HE-ZZTAF+A=+—
H
(i Exercisable period from 1 November 2008 to 31 October (ii) TEMR—_ZZEN\F+—A
2010 —BEZ—ZF+TA=+
—H
Share options were granted under a service condition. BRI IR AR TSR I o 5T B R R 4
The condition has not been taken into account in the R IZ L B EM A FER W EEE
grant date fair value measurement of the services rendered. FZAG A o BT O A9 B AR A 7 488 B 75 Th 35
There were no market conditions associated with share (EqE
options grant.
DEFERRED TAXATION 29. EEHIE
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognised in respect EERBEE,/ (AE) LEKRIUTE
of the following items: B R :
The Group The Company
RE ARAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZZETLF ZEBENG ZZTTLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000

EBET T BT T EBET T BET T

Taxable temporary differences  FE:RF & b | =58

— accelerated tax depreciation  — JERFEIEITE (482) (9,566) - =

Tax losses HIAEE 175,650 169,232 85,913 85,913

175,168 159,666 85,913 85,913

The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation. It is RIBRITEL BIBEBRL T E MR

improbable that future profit will be available in foreseeable future 8T8 R i AR A% B i A BT A DA SE A TR S
against which the tax losses can be utilised. B

Annual Report 2008 3 97



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i £ —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

30.

31.

98

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Hong Kong

The Group operate Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is
a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Other than Hong Kong

The subsidiary of the Group in the PRC other than Hong Kong
participate in defined contribution schemes organised by the
respective municipal or provincial governments in the PRC whereby
they are required to make contributions at the rate 22% (2007
20% to 22%) of the standard wages determined by the relevant
authorities in the PRC.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing and
retired employees are payable by the relevant PRC scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations beyond
the contributions.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(a) Disposal of subsidiary during the year ended 31
March 2008

On 11 September 2007, the Group disposed of a
subsidiary, namely Profit Trade Developments Limited,
which was an investment holding company, to an
independent third party for a cash consideration of HK$8.

The subsidiary disposed of during the year contributed nil
(2007: Nil) to the Group’s turnover and had no loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company (2007:
HK$5,000 loss from operations).

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

30.

31.

EBERAKER
i

AEBERBERERFIMEAESFEK
Bl BEZEREEREERITZEER
SMoRFIEATESEE ([RESEE]) -
BRESFE I HBYRABE 2 T
HERARFT B - BIERBESHE BEER
EEXEARRBESHABWRAZ5%M
MBS BELNET - BEAFBEKA
IR A 20,0007T ° itk 5 & 2 ZED

Iy 55 & o
BEBEUME

RNEERPR (FBBRIN 2K B AT
2 E M AR BA T ERAT S 9 2 T A
HREt & WEREZETE 222% (=%
THF:20%E22%) tEH - AL
KT REEIMPPIEE-

R st RERDRKER 2R
KENETEBRAEEEAIN M
BRE B L3R5 AR B S E b T o

RERERERME

(@) RBE-ZENF=A=+-
ALEFERALENBAR
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31.

STATEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31

March 2007

On 31 December 2006, the Group disposed of certain
subsidiaries, namely 1t R 2125 % B & H IR 2 7, Tianjin
City Hai Jin Audio-Video Distribution Co., Ltd. and Mega
Bonus Investments Limited, which were engaged in the
business of publishing and multi-media product trading in
Mainland China, to an independent third party for a cash

consideration of HK$1.

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year contributed
HK$899,000 (2006: HK$1,820,000) to the Group’s
turnover and a loss of HK$9,000 (2006: HK$2,271,000)
to the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company.

The cash flow and the net liabilities of subsidiaries

disposed of are provided below:

Ra

(b)

(c)

RERBRME (&)

REZE-ZEZTLF=A=1+-—
AEFERAHENBARA

RZBEERF+A=+—8"
AEEARERESE1TRE
VE=ZFHEETHWERR 5
B A TE P B A 1 S5 H i & % 3R
RERMEEXEBNILARESK
BEBRAR  REMEESHE
%178 R A A X Mega Bonus
Investments Limited

FRAHEMNBRAR DRI AERE
EEEBENANRERBE AR
1l /&5 18 75 2R 78 #899,0007T (=
T TN F A #1,820,0000T) &
B8 #09,000T (Z T TN F:
M2 271,0007T) ©

FHENBARNRERER
BEFENOT:

2008 2007
—EENF —EEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BEFIT
Property, plant and equipment LIERY T Y58 - 26
Other non-current financial assets ~ E b IEREN M BB & 1 =
Inventories FE - 254
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H fth lE Y FIE - 39
Cash at bank and on hand IRITRFERE - 97
Trade and other payables 5 NH e FIE - (2,875)
Due to a related company B — R E A R IE - (160)
Net amount due to the Group JES AN & B FUIE JFEE (30,819) (21,943)
Net liabilities disposed of I E8EFH (30,818) (24,562)
Exchange reserve released 2 bR O 3 (1 - 27
Gain on disposal (note 7(d) e W= (HaE7() 30,818 24,535
Cash consideration received, BEUHRERE UBREXN
satisfied in cash - =
Less: Cash of subsidiaries disposed of J& :FTHH EKTB AR 2R & - 97
Net cash outflow in respect of HENBARZ
the disposal of subsidiaries e ML FE - 97)
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32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 32. MEERBEEZEERERER
POLICIES
(@ Financial instruments (a) BHEIA
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been VB IANGHEEDER
applied to the line items below: N THIEE :
The Group
rE
Assets at
Loans fair value Available-for-
and through sale financial
receivables profit or loss assets Total
REA¥E
-9 HE = e
EBUWHRE EEZEE MKEE 5t
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt aE BT T BT T BT T B TFT
Assets as per REREE
consolidated BERZEE
balance sheet
31 March 2008 —EENF
=B=+—H
Other non-current  EAbIERE
financial assets MG ARE 19 - - 1,092 1,092
Trade receivables Z 5 MW SRIA 22 58 - - 58
Prepayments and BRI ZRIBERIZE
deposits 22 14,604 - - 14,604
Other receivables H e U SR IR 22 25 - - 25
Trading securites ~ ZBHE & 21 - 338 - 338
Cash and RekER
cash equivalents HLIBE 23 32,194 - - 32,194
Total st 46,881 338 1,092 48,311
31 March 2007 —ETLF
EF=—F
Other non-current ~ E A IR B
financial assets WBEE 19 = = 3 3
Amount due from UL —[EREE
arelated company AR FKIB 22 1,014 = = 1,014
Trade receivables & 5 WA 22 3,861 - - 3,861
Prepayments and ~ TEfTRIBRIZS
deposits 22 1,013 — — 1,013
Other receivables  E i FE IR IA 22 1,500 - - 1,500
Trading securities BEERE 21 = 6,207 = 6,207
Cash and RekER
cash equivalents ReIEH 23 2,853 = = 2,853
Total FEES 10,241 6,207 3 16,451

100 Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited /&[5 % (£E) R A 7




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & B AE

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i Z —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA % ¥ 51| (&)

32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 32.
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

BHEEREREBERBEK (&)

(a) H¥IA(E)

The Group

3

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

22§ F 12 %:S
SR KA E
Notes HK$'000
s BT T
Liabilities per consolidated REAEEEERZERE
balance sheet
31 March 2008 —EENF=A=1+—H
Convertible notes AT AR TR 26 20,028
Obligation under a financial lease B M A E 25 273
Trade payables H S ENRIA 24 602
Amount due to a minority shareholder R —2LERERFIE 24 914
Amount due a related company FET— R A B 3R 24 12,012
Accruals and other payables EAERREMEMNKE 24 28,852
Total FE 62,681
31 March 2007 —ETt+F=RA=+—H
Obligation under a financial lease A ERE 25 507
Trade payables B S IEN IR 24 2,148
Amounts due to directors EESHE 24 1,500
Amount due a related company e —ERE R R FIE 24 21,467
Accruals and other payables EAERREMENKE 24 28,164
Total aEt 53,786
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(a)

32.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 32. MEEKBEEZHEREX (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) (a) BHIA (&)
The Company
b NN
Assets at
Loans fair value Available-for-
and through sale financial
receivables profit or loss assets Total
BAYE
BRER KB At HE
EWmE EBEEZEE MKEE et
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K e+ BT T BT T BT T BT T
Assets as per REEEEBR
balance sheet ZEE
31 March 2008 —E2EN\FE
=A=+—H
Amounts due FE W BT 8 A A
from subsidiaries FIE 22 52,844 - - 52,844
Prepayments and B RERIZE
deposits 22 138 - - 138
Other receivables H b fE UK SR I8 22 2 2
Trading securities BEHEEE 21 - 338 - 338
Cash and RekER
cash equivalents ReIEH 23 646 - - 646
Total FEES 53,630 338 - 53,968
31 March 2007 —TTLF
=A=+—H
Other non-current  Efth IER B
financial assets P EE 19 = = 1 1
Amounts due NG
from subsidiaries FQE] 22 7,875 = = 7,875
Prepayments and Bt RIERIZE
deposits 22 112 - - 112
Other receivables H th JE W FRIR 22 1,500 = = 1,500
Trading securites ~ FHEE 21 - 6,207 = 6,207
Cash and RekER
cash equivalents ReIEHE 23 547 - = 547
Total st 10,034 6,207 1 16,242
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32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 32. MXRMEECEERREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

MBEIAR (&)

The Company
AT

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

128 65 AR
FIRZ M KAaE
Notes HK$'000
K e+ BEFIT
Liabilities per balance sheet REEBEBRZEE
31 March 2008 —EENF=HA=1+—H
Convertible notes AT AR TR 26 20,028
Obligation under a financial lease B M EAE 25 273
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A A 38 24 4,212
Accruals and other payables EAERREMENKE 24 7,524
Total FEE 32,037
31 March 2007 —TE+F=A=+—H
Obligation under a financial lease A ERE 25 507
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL EENGIE ] 24 29,450
Amounts due to directors B ESHE 24 1,500
Accruals and other payables EAERREMENKE 24 7,722
Total HBET 39,179
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32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and
operation risk. The Group’s risk management objectives
and policies mainly focus on minimising the potential
adverse effects of these risks on the Group by closely
monitoring the individual exposure as summarised below.

(1) Market risk

)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB”). Certain recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operations are denominated in
currencies other than the functional
currencies of the entities to which they
relate.

Certain of the assets of the Group are
principally denominated in United States
Dollars (“US$”). Since HK$ is pegged to
USS$, thus foreign exchange exposure on
US$ is considered as minimal. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy.

At 31st March, 2008, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 10% against
the RMB, equity would have been
approximately HK$339,000 (2007:
HK$309,000) higher or lower.

104 Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited /&[5 % (£E) R A 7

32.

BHERREEZBERREER (£)

(b) B1 35 EL B B &

REBZEBSREEUBRAR ™
%R (B3E5NE E B - 7 & & g &
f,\igﬂk) f:ffﬂ fm //\L@éiﬂ
pRGERB-ANEE AREER
BEEBREFEZETREBEYEE
18 7 2 ez - e T RUME 5% 5 L B 3 AR B2
BrBETHEE SHamTe

(1) 45 &k
() SN JE B

AEBEHELETRAEYR
Rz MERE  TREAR
B (TAR®])AR-ETE
BREENABRRBEINE
sz&ﬁ)%‘%ﬁi’]uﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi%

DR EB N ER BB -

AEBEETEETEUXRT
(IEx]) REM-HRE
BRTTH A MR T AR
Z I R A 0 ZKE@E%H‘I
3 4 S B S b R SR

RZZEENF=ZA=1+—8"
WEBELANRBEAE§E
10% - #Ezs A1 pn sk Rl A 4978
¥ 339,000 (ZE T+ F:
78 #309,0007T) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & B AE

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i Z —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(1)

Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied
to each of the Group entities’ exposure to
currency risk for financial instruments in
existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the next annual balance
sheet date. In this respect, it is assumed
that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollars and the United States dollars
would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the United
States dollars against other currencies.
Results of the analysis as presented in
above represent an aggregation of the
effects on each of the Group entities’ results
for the year and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rate ruling at the balance sheet date for
presentation purposes. The analysis is
prepared on the same basis for 2007.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and cash equivalents (hote
23), the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Management does
not anticipate significant impact on interest-
bearing assets resulted from the changes
in interest rates because the interest rates
of bank deposits are not expected to
change significantly.

32.

BHEEREREBERBEK (&)

(b) M EEE (&)

(1) TEER (&)

(1)

(i)

Sh B (48

HRESITNDRERNEE
HREREE IEEEEAZIKE
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""""" HEIEEEERRINEREX
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DIMEREAEBSERR
AERZEERMEBEZY
REEREZERREZIZ
ExmEREE s FE-_F
BLEZ2 DM IIAERELE

BemwE RN FEFERE
KRR RERRSHEE (H
d23) I AEBEY |EHEME
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32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(1)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group’s convertible notes (note 26)
were issued at a fixed rate of 2% per
annum and expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. Management considers
the Group’s exposure to fair value interest
rate risk is insignificant. Hence, the Group
does not use any derivative instruments to
hedge such exposure.

No sensitively analysis for the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk arising from
interest-bearing financial assets and
liabilities is prepared since the
management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in interest rates is
insignificant.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because investments held by the
Group are classified on the consolidated
balance sheet as available-for-sale financial
assets and trading securities. As the
Group’s policy is only to invest on such
investments by its surplus funds, the
exposure may not have significant impact
on the Group’s financial position. The Group
is not exposed to commodity price risk.

The Company is exposed to other price
risk in respect of investments in subsidiaries.
The sensitivity to price risk in relation to the
investments in subsidiaries cannot be
reliably determined due to numerous
uncertainties regarding the future
development of these subsidiaries.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
cash and cash equivalents, other non-current
financial assets, trading securities, and trade and
other receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are reputable banks with high
quality external credit ratings in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

Investments in other non-current financial assets
and trading securities are governed by whether
the issuer and the counterparties respectively have
sound credit rating and/or reputation.

Trade and other receivables mainly arise from the
Group’s business activities. Management monitors
the credit policy on an ongoing basis. The Group
has established procedures in the selection of
customers with sound credit rating and/or
reputation.

The Group has well defined policies in place on
the setting and approval of trading, credit and
investment position limits in order to limit its credit
risk exposure and concentration. As at the balance
sheet date, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by
the carrying amount of each of financial assets in
the consolidated balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. Further quantitative
disclosure in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 22.

32.
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32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 32. MEEKBEEZHEREX (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
(b)  Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) HH¥ERMERE (&)
(3)  Liquidity risk B) mEBELEE
Individual operating entities within the Group are REBREREEHEER
responsible for their own cash management, BEEAGHNReER"
including the short term investment of cash BIEER S ABERHE
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover B -UAREABERNAmR
expected cash demands, subject to approval by FEHReH K HEHNEE
the parent company’s board when the borrowings KB E T T8 E R K
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. £ RBESHARIES
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity SHE-RNEB 2 HE R
requirements and its compliance with lending EHERERBESHK
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient LERBETEERHE:
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of BREFTHIRESRRKE
funding from major financial institutions to meet its FEMBHE 2B &
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. HFOUNENERGRER
The table below categorised the Group’s financial TRIIBIEREE BB
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on EEXNINHA KB T
the remaining period from the balance sheet date BAEB BB ES R
to the contractual maturity date. ZiEE R HAR -
The tabulated amounts are the contractual BERERTHNEREAELRSE
undiscounted cash flow payments of the Group. ZEAHRTRBEERE -
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
SPR—EFE —EZWME WMEERRE et
HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$
B B B B
As 31 st March, R-ZENE
2008 ShEE i =H
Trade and other B REAM
payables & B IE 42,380 - - 42,380
Obligation under BB EAE
a financial lease 263 44 - 307
Convertible notes AR EE 507 507 26,509 27,523
43,150 551 26,509 70,210
As 31 st March RZEZELF
2007 =A=+—8
Trade and other BE5REAM
payables JE T IE 53,279 - - 53,279
Obligation under BhE T B AR
a financial lease 263 263 44 570
53,542 263 44 53,849
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

A

®)

©)

Operation risk

The Group’s operations may be adversely affected
by significant political, economic and social
uncertainties in the PRC. Although the PRC
government has been pursing economic reform
policies for the past years, no assurance can be
given that the PRC government will continue to
purse such policies or that such policies may not
be significant.

Fair value

All financial assets and liabilities are stated at fair
value or carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 March 2008 and
2007.

Estimation of fair values

Fair value of listed investments is usually based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date
without any deduction for transaction costs. Fair
values of listed investments are determined using
valuation techniques when quoted prices are not
considered to be a reliable indicator of fair value.
Unlisted investments for which fair values cannot
be reliably measured are stated at cost.

The fair values of debtors, bank balances and other
liquid funds, creditors and accruals, and provisions
are assumed to approximate to their carrying
amounts due to the short-term maturities of these
assets and liabilities.

32.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(6) Estimation of fair values (Continued)

The fair value of finance lease liabilities is estimated
as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market rates for similar
financial instruments.

For derivatives, the estimate of the fair value of the
conversion option embedded in the convertible
notes with cash settlement alternatives is measured
using discounted market rate of initial recognition
for similar financial instruments.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debts-
to-total adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debts divided by total adjusted capital. Net debts
include current liabilities and non-current liabilities less cash
and cash equivalents. Total adjusted capital includes net
debts and total equity as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group’s policy is to keep the net
debts-to-total adjusted capital at a reasonable level.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 32.
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The net debts-to-total adjusted capital ratios at 31st March,
2008 and 2007 are as follows:

BHEEREREBERBEK (&)

(c)

EXEmER (&)

R-FBENFR=

T+F=A

=t— EIZﬁfm%%Eﬂ%&uH%éé

ABEEL RN
2008 2007
=L LN —TT4
HK$’000 HK$000
BEFT BT
Current liabilities mEa & 42,614 53,513
Non-current liabilities IER @J af&E 20,067 273
Total debts B HEE 62,681 53,786
Less: cash and cash equivalents &l -IR& R ERIIRELHEE 32,194 2,853
Net debts B F5E 30,487 50,933
Total equity e MR FE 3,511 215
Total adjusted capital AR ERER 33,998 51,148
Net debts-to-total adjusted capital B FEREL EFHEE RNBAKE 89.7% 99.6%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to either internally or externally imposed capital
requirements.

ARBREEAMBRRHHEA
XA BRINKENEARRER S
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33.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2008, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

(a)

(b)

As lessor

At 31 March 2008, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
receivable as follows:

33. KEMHERE

R-ZTBEENF=A=1+—H KEEE
BRIz &2 HERMAORKRRKE
HemmEmT:

(a)

EREEA

RZEBENF=ZA=+—0"'K
SERBETAHEcKEHERE
WHRRREHSABMAT

The Group
KEE

2008 2007
—EENFE —TT+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETF T BT
Within 1 year —FR - 698
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEBERFR - 466
- 1,164

In 2007, the Group sub-letted its rented premises under
operating lease. The lease typically ran for an initial period
of two years, with an option to renew the lease when all
terms were renegotiated. The lease did not include
contingent rentals.

As lessee
At 31 March 2008, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

(b)

R-ZBZELF AEERELE
HESHEETHEYME -AH—
RO RYME EFBEIMA
R AR EEM - EALNY

fE 1A
R-BENF=A=+—H &

SERBETAIRECKEHERE
MHRKKEHSLBOAT:

The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—ZEENE —TELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BEF T
Within 1 year —FA 1,434 1,327
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFR 508 =
1,942 1,327

The leases typically run for an initial period of two years,
with an option to renew the leases when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.
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34. LITIGATIONS 34. /@

Pending litigation

On 10 July 2006, a legal action for damages of
approximately HK$76,862,000 for breach of agreements
was brought up by four independent third parties (the
“Plaintiffs”), who were the previous minority interests holders
of a former subsidiary of the Company. The Company is
the 1st defendant and Investsource Limited (formerly
known as Sun Television Cybernetworks Company Limited)
(“Investsource”), a former wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company that was disposed of by the Company in June
2004, is the 2nd defendant. It is alleged that the Plaintiffs,
the Company and Investsource entered into a provisional
agreement dated 11 July 2000 (the “First Agreement”)
whereby:

= Investsource agreed to acquire from the Plaintiffs
the 60% equity interest in TV Viagens (Macau),
S.AR.L. (“TV Viagens”);

- Upon signing the formal sale and purchase
agreement and completion of the acquisition
transaction, the Company and Investsource agreed
to provide finance to TV Viagens for any shortfall
of operational costs incurred by TV Viagens and
for the services fees payable by TV Viagens; and

= Upon signing the formal sale and purchase
agreement and completion of the acquisition
transaction, Investsource should obtain consent
from the Plaintiffs and the Company before any
transfer of its interest in TV Viagens.

FFHIR B R R

RZZEZRNFLA+H HEB
NE=ZF(RE] TMAEEKRQE
BB ARMA L E8ERES
N RERBZESEBRNBE
76,862,000 T 2 H &F 7A ° AN A A)
&% — # & - M Investsource
Limited ( [ Investsource] - Ai 78
Sun Television Cybernetworks
Company Limited * "R AR
THESALENRIZERBR
A) AR _HE-HEBRE X
A A Klinvestsource R —EZEF
FLtA+T—HEILBERGE
(FrEg—Wma&El) HEit:

— Investsource[d = Al R 4
U BETV Viagens (Macau),
S.AR.L. ([TV Viagens] )
60%% # :

= FAEXNEEWZERTK
KEZZ® Xoak
Investsourcefd & 3t TV
ViagensF ] £ & pX A~ 58
BREENKRBEERTV
ViagensiZft & £ &

= FEIEREBEE HE R TR
W B <X 5 1% » Investsource
BAREZEEMBTV
Viagens# #= B BU{ R &
EARRBIRE-

Annual Report 2008 3k 113



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i £ —EZENF=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

34.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(a)

Pending litigation (Continued)

It is also alleged that after the revision of some terms and
conditions under the First Agreement, the Plaintiffs and
Investsource entered into the formal sale and purchase
agreement dated 8 August 2000 (the “Second Agreement”)
whereby:

= Investsource agreed to acquire from the Plaintiffs
the 51% equity interest in TV Viagens, which was
subsequently acquired by Investsource during the
year ended 31 March 2001 and disposed of during
the year ended 31 March 2003; and

= Investsource agreed to provide finance to TV
Viagens from the date of completion of the
acquisition transaction for any shortfall of
operational costs incurred by TV Viagens and for
the services fees payable by TV Viagens.

It is also alleged that in view of the failure by the Company
and Investsource to finance TV Viagens, TV Viagens is
not financially able to continue its business due to short of
working capital and therefore the shareholding of the
Plaintiffs in TV Viagens becomes valueless.

The Plaintiffs claim against the Company for damages of
approximately HK$76,862,000 or such an amount as the
court may determine, interest thereon, costs and/or other
relief due to the Company’s alleged breach of agreements
to provide finance to TV Viagens for its operational costs
and for the services fees payable by TV Viagens.

Up to the date of approval of the financial statements, this
action is still in progress and no hearing date has been
fixed since 31 March 2007.
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34.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pending litigation (Continued)

With the advice of the Company’s external legal adviser,
the directors are of the opinion that the Company has no
legal or financial obligations to the Plaintiffs in that the
First Agreement was superseded by the Second
Agreement and that the Company was not bound by the
Second Agreement. The directors are of the opinion that
the Company will strongly refute and the Company intends
to vigorously contest the allegations and that the allegations
are to be without merit and too remote to be held against
the Company. Based on legal advice, the directors are of
the opinion that the Company has a very good chance of
successfully defending the case. The directors believe that
the dispute can be settled without losses to be incurred
by the Group and the Company, and therefore no provision
for losses in this aspect has been made in these financial
statements.

Claim of HK$1,500,000 and counterclaim of
HK$4,808,000

On 2 June 2004, Top Olympic Enterprises Limited (“Top
Olympic”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and two independent third parties (the “FRD Vendors”)
entered into an agreement (the “FRD Agreement”) whereby
Top Olympic agreed to acquire from the FRD Vendors the
60% interest in FRD Holdings Inc. (“FRD Holdings”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
collectively owned by the FRD Vendors, and paid a
refundable deposit of HK$1,500,000 (the “Deposit”) to
Mr. Kenneth Ma Hon Wah (“Mr. Ma”), one of the FRD
Vendors, within one month from the date of the FRD
Agreement. In the event that the FRD Agreement was
terminated or the completion of the aforesaid acquisition
of the 60% interest in FRD Holdings did not occur for
whatever reason, Mr. Ma would return the Deposit to Top
Olympic. In June 2004, the Company paid Mr. Ma the
Deposit. However, the FRD Agreement subsequently
ceased as the FRD Agreement was not completed before
the long-stop date of 31 August 2004 of the FRD
Agreement.

34.

AR ()

(a)

(b)

FHORWFAR (F)

BEADRIINELZEMNE
R ZERE ERE—H#EASE
—wEBR MARRLETZE
“WEATAR MARRBAEY
REREEMERITIEE (Fo
BERE ARARBE2NERE
A E S E 4B E D R R R
IR BB RIS RERIE IE K 8 A
BRI -BEEEER EERAN
AEIBFRESER -ESMHERE &
EEBRARRBEAZEMBL
EAFREEFE WA ER It
EEREMEREPEL R EIE
B

AR % % %1,500,000T & X R &
7 % 4,808,000T

RZEZEWNENA-_H ARQA
2 & W B A& Top Olympic
Enterprises Limited ( [ Top
Olympic] ) M Z B E = H
([FRDE A ) )z % ([FRDH#3
#1) Bt Top OlympicA & A
FRDE 5 W B FRD Holdings Inc.
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AR FEFIFRDW % B e 5t — &
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34.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Claim of HK$1,500,000 and counterclaim of
HK$4,808,000 (Continued)

In November 2004, the Company and Top Olympic
demanded Mr. Ma for the full repayment of the Deposit
and Formula Racing Development Limited (“FRD Limited”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of FRD Holdings, issued a
cheque with an amount of HK$1,500,000 to the Company.
However, the cheque was dishonoured upon presentation
for payment by the Company. On 15 June 2005, the
Company and Top Olympic commenced an action against
Mr. Ma and FRD Limited for the immediate full repayment
of the Deposit, interest thereon, costs and/or other relief.

However, FRD Limited made a counterclaim against the
Company and alleged that before the Company entered
into the FRD Agreement, the Company agreed to finance
promotional activities and events (the “Promotional
Activities”) to be carried out by FRD Holdings and FRD
Limited in order to promote the image of the Company
and FRD Holdings in the motorsports media and organiser
discipline. It was also alleged that FRD Limited spent a
sum of approximately HK$4,808,000 on the Promotional
Activities and was prepared to set-off the Deposit against
the expenses of HK$1,500,000. Accordingly, FRD Limited
made a counterclaim against the Company in the amount
of approximately HK$4,808,000 in relation to the
Promotional Activities, interest thereon, costs and/or other
relief.

On 22 March 2007, the case was heard by The High
Court of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
and judgement was held in favour of the Company and
Top Olympic. Mr. Ma and FRD Limited were required to
repay the Company the Deposit together with the interest
thereon until payment and litigation costs. Up to 31 May
2007, the accrued interest on the Deposit was
approximately HK$304,000. In June 2007, the Deposit
was repaid to the Company.
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35.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
related party transactions.

(a)

Profit guarantee for Tidetime Future Optical Media
Technology Limited

Pursuant to an agreement dated 24 August 2004 entered
into between Tide Time Holdings Limited (“Tide Time
Holdings”), a substantial shareholder of the Company;,
and the Company, Tide Time Holdings issued to the
Company a guarantee whereby the total profit after tax of
Tidetime Future Optical Media Technology Limited
(“Tidetime Future Optical”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company which was acquired from Tide Time Holdings
by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2005,
will not be less than HK$22 million for two years
commencing on 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2006
(the “Guaranteed Profit”). If Tidetime Future Optical is not
able to meet the Guaranteed Profit, Tide Time Holdings
will pay the Company a sum equivalent to the shortfall of
the aggregate of the actual profit after tax of Tidetime
Future Optical and the Guaranteed Profit as compensation.
During the year, the Company received the Guaranteed
Profit of HK$22 million as compensation.

Tide Time Holdings is beneficially owned as to 70% by
Mr. Chen Ping (“Mr. Chen”), 5% by Ms. Ma Jianhua,
spouse of Mr. Chen, 10% by Ms. Ma Jian Ying (“Ms.
Ma”), sister-in-law of Mr. Chen, 3% by Mr. Walter
Stasyshyn (“Mr. Stasyshyn”) and 10% by Mr. Man Ming
(“Mr. Man”). Mr. Chen, Ms. Ma, Mr. Stasyshyn and Mr.
Man are directors of the Company.

35.
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35.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Sales to a related company

During the year ended 31 March 2008, Shanghai New
Culture TV And Radio Making Company Limited (“Shanghai
New Culture”), a subsidiary of the Company, supplied
broadcasting and content production services to £ /& #T
XEEERESEARAT ([FxXfbEE]), the
holding company of a minority shareholder of Shanghai
New Culture, amounting to HK$4,595,000 (2007: Nil),
which was under similar terms as it traded with other
customers. In the opinion of the directors, the transactions
were carried out in the ordinary course of business and
on normal commercial terms.

As at 31 March 2008, there was an outstanding amount
of HK$12,012,000 due to ¥ {LEF#H (2007:
HK$20,453,000 (net)). The amount is unsecured, interest
fee and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Rental income from sub-letting of rented premises
from a related company

During the year, the Company received net rental income
of HK$67,000 (2007: HK$233,000) from Sun Satellite
Broadcasting Company Limited (“Sun Satellite
Broadcasting”) for sub-letting of rented premises. In the
opinion of the directors, the transactions were carried out
in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms. As at 31 March 2008, there was no
outstanding balance due to Sun Satellite Broadcasting
from the Group (2007: Nil).

Sun Satellite Broadcasting is controlled by Mr. Chen and
Ms. Ma, directors of the Company.
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35.

36.

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 35. EABEALRE (&)
Guarantee given by a director of the Company (d XAF—BEERMZER
Ms. Ma has given a personal guarantee to the extent of BELTERBETARARAZZ2EMN
HK$8,000,000 in favour of a securities trading company BRRIFHREER AR ZES
for securities trading facilities granted to China Giant BEEMAM—HEAREEAAIRE
Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the #E{E A ¥E 1R % # 8,000,0007T °
Company.
Key management personnel remuneration (e) ETEEBABEFM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEBTEBEBEASHWN (B
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors B FEQ K Bt 5E 104 Bl BT 3% & © -
as disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest paid RKAREZ k&= HEENRIEA)
employees as disclosed in note 10, is as follows: AR :
The Group
RE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYET T BT
Short-term employee benefits RHEBRET 4,572 2,890
Post-employment benefits BB ET 57 29
Equity compensation benefits B 17 (& £ 18 F 7 14
4,636 2,933
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note B @EEA A T8 ITRA] (ZF
7(b)). #Z7(b)) e
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 36. LEEEF

In the current year, amount due to F/&# XL EEREEBH
IR A ([#X{eEE | ) is regarded as amount due to a related
company. In prior year, the amount of HK$21,467,000 due to 7
X Ab{E % was included in other payables. Comparative figures
have been reclassified to conform with the current year
presentation.

RAFE BN ESFLERRES
EARAR ([FXEEE]) 2 RIEH
RAEEMN—HEEARZIE X5 BN
AL EE R IE A #21,467,0007C &1
AHMBEMERRN - ETLHERFEE

#a

BUAERFEZ 25T A — B

N N
A
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37.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 32 contains information about the assumptions and the risk
factors relating to financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within next financial year are set out as follows:

(a)

(b)

Assessment of impairment for non-current assets

The Group has non-current assets, including goodwill and
other intangible assets. Assets that have an indefinite useful
life are tested for impairment annually. Assets that are
subject to depreciation and amortisation are assessed on
an annual basis as to whether there is any indication of
impairment loss which suggests that the carrying value of
these assets may not be recoverable. Management
assesses the recoverable amount of each non-current
asset based on its value in use (using relevant rates) or on
its fair value less costs to sell (with reference to market
prices), depending upon the anticipated future plans for
the assets. Estimating the value in use of an asset involves
estimating the future cash inflows and outflows to be
derived from continuing use of the asset and from its
ultimate disposal and applying the appropriate discount
rate to these future cash flows. Cash flow projections for
the remaining useful life of the asset and the most recent
financial budgets/forecasts are approved by management.

Impairment loss on bad and doubtful debts

The Group provides impairment loss on bad and doubtful
debts based upon evaluation of the recoverability of the
trade receivables and other receivables at each balance
sheet date. The impairment is based on the ageing of the
trade receivables and other receivables balances, the
credit-worthness of debtors and the historical write-off
experience, net of recoveries. If the financial condition of
the debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment may
be required.
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37.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment loss on broadcasting programmes

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the
Group’s broadcasting programmes with reference to all
readily available information and current market
environment. Impairment for estimated irrecoverable
amounts is recognised in income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on broadcasting
programmes is required, the Group takes into consideration
the current market environment, the estimated market
value of the assets and/or the present value of future
cash flow expected to be received. Impairment is
recognised based on the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use.

Valuation of investment in securities

All financial securities are recognised initially at fair value.
The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition
is normally the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received. Fair values of investments
in securities that are quoted in active markets are based
on bid prices for assets held and offer prices for liabilities.
When independent prices are not available, fair values are
determined by using valuation techniques which refer to
observable market data. These include comparison with
similar instruments where market observable prices exist
and appropriate valuation techniques commonly used by
market participants.

The main factors which management considers included
(i) the likelihood and expected timing of future cash flows
on the securities. These cash flows are usually governed
by the terms of the securities, although management
judgement may be required in situations where the ability
of the counterparty to service the securities in accordance
with the contractual terms is in doubt; and (i) an
appropriate discount rate for the securities. Management
determines this rate, based on its assessment of the
appropriate spread of the rate for the securities over the
risk-free rate. When valuing securities by reference to
comparable instruments, management takes into account
the maturity, structure and rating of the instrument with
which the position held is being compared.
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37.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d

(e)

Valuation of investment in securities (Continued)

Changes in their fair value of trading securities directly
impact the Group’s income statement in the period in
which they occur. Change in their fair value of available-
for-sale securities is recorded directly in equity until the
securities are sold, at which point the cumulative change
in fair value is charged or credited to the income statement.
For those securities classified as available-for-sale,
consideration as to whether any such assets should be
written down to reflect an impairment is taken into account
in the fair value of the relevant security. Any impairment in
the value of available-for-sale securities held as available-
for-sale is reported in the income statement and hence
increase the Group’s loss for the year.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence.
In assessing the probability, both positive and negative
evidence is considered, including whether it is more likely
than not that the operations will have future taxable profits
over the period in which the deferred tax assets are
deductible or utilised. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future financial performance of
the particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred
tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors
are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised,
such as the existence of taxable temporary differences,
group relief, tax planning strategies and the periods in
which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred taxation and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
The Group uses all readily information including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating costs in
assessing the probability. In addition, actual outcomes in
terms of future taxable profits may be higher or lower
than estimated at the balance sheet date, which would
affect the profit or loss in the future years.
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38.

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO 38.

EXISTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The HKICPA has issued the following standards, interpretations
and amendments which are not yet effective as of the date of
these financial statements:

Effective from 1 January 2008

HK(FRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(FRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Assets, Minimum
Funding Requirement and their

Interaction

Effective from 1 July 2008

HK(FRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

Effective from 1 January 2009
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Effective from 1 July 2009
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements

Financial Statements Business
Combinations

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

The Group has not early adopted the above standards,
interpretations and amendments and is not yet in a position to
state whether substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and presentation of the financial statements will be
resulted.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEMBERE

RESULTS
E
For the year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HLEE
(restated)
(E5)
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ETNF —_TTRF —_TERF _TTLF ZBEENE
HK$'000  HK$000  HKP000  HK$000  HK$000
BT BMFI EBEFITT BT B¥%Fr
TURNOVER BER
Continuing operations SECEE 184,077 30,170 51,132 32,050 50,686
Discontinued operations BRI = = = = -
184,077 30,170 51,132 32,050 50,686
OPERATING LOSS KREEER
Continuing operations RELEER (247,861) (178,579)  (36,510)  (67,017) (722)
Discontinued operations R = = = = -
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION BB RIEE (247,861) (178,579) (36,510) 67,017) (722)
TAXATION B (353) 3 £l == -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEER (248,214)  (178,579) (36,510) 67,017) (722)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: FEfh:
EQUITY HOLDERS AABEEFEA
OF THE COMPANY (231,046)  (177,040) (36,510) 67,017) (722)
MINORITY INTERESTS DEBRRER (17,168) (1,539) o - -
(248,214)  (178,579) (36,510) 67,017) (722)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAE
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—EENF —FERHTF —_EEF _ZETLF ZEENE
HK$'000  HK$000  HKP000  HK$000  HK$000
BT BT EEFT EEFr B%Fx
TOTAL ASSETS HmEE 220,760 153,588 143,079 54,001 66,192
TOTAL LIABILITIES weE (86,302) (64,358) (75,774) (53,786) (62,681)
134,458 89,230 67,305 215 3,511
TOTAL EQUITY NN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BFEAEMN
EQUITY HOLDERS B A48 55
OF THE COMPANY 124,862 89,230 67,305 215 3,511
MINORITY INTERESTS DERRER 9,596 = = = -
134,458 89,230 67,305 215 3,511
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